

### Alcohol Use during Pregnancy and Awareness of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome and Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder

Results of a National Survey

#### **FINAL REPORT**

Prepared for:
Public Health Agency of Canada
(PHAC)
POR-05-57
Contract # H1011-050046/01/CY

Prepared by: Environics Research Group

May 2006

pn5877

#### Contents

1.0	Introduction	3
2.0	Summary of Findings	4
2.0	Résumé des résultats	6
3.0	BEHAVIOURS TO INCREASE LIKELIHOOD OF HAVING HEALTHY BABY  3.1 Top-of-Mind Awareness of Behaviours  3.2 Assessing the Importance of Specific Actions	9 9 11
4.0	EFFECTS OF ALCOHOL USE DURING PREGNANCY  4.1 Beliefs about the Effects of Alcohol Use  4.2 Beliefs about the Effects of Specific Amounts of Alcohol	14 14 18
5.0	AWARENESS OF FETAL ALCOHOL SYNDROME OR FETAL ALCOHOL SPECTRUM DISORDER  5.1 Awareness of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome or Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder  5.2 Awareness of Alcohol-Related Birth Defects	20 20 22
6.0	Recall of Information and advertising about the Effects of Alcohol Use	24 24 25
7.0	Information Sources	29 29 31
8.0	Support For Initiatives to Provide Information about the Risks of Alcohol Use	33
9.0	WOMEN AND THEIR PARTNERS  9.1 Alcohol Use During Pregnancy  9.2 Effect of Partner on Alcohol Use during Pregnancy	35 35 36
10.0	Women and Advice from Doctors	38
11.0	Men and their Partners	39
12.0	Awareness of Levels of Alcohol Consumption	41
13.0	Conclusions and Recomendations	43
	Appendices Survey Methods Ouestionnaires	

#### 1.0 Introduction

Fetal Alcohol Syndrome (FAS) is the leading cause of developmental disability among Canadian children. The new term, Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD), is an umbrella term used to describe a number of disabilities associated with prenatal exposure to alcohol. Progress has been made in understanding FASD in Canada and internationally in recent years.

FASD has no cure, but it can be prevented. A major factor in this prevention is a well-informed and knowledgeable public, and, particularly, well-informed prospective parents.

In February 2006, Environics Research Group Limited was retained by Public Health Agency of Canada (PHAC) to conduct a survey of population segments, to measure knowledge of the effects of alcohol use during pregnancy, and awareness of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome and Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder. The population segments included women, aged 18 to 40, and male partners of women, aged 18 to 40, who would be key target groups of a campaign to raise awareness and knowledge of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome and Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder.

This survey follows a baseline survey conducted by Environics in November 1999 (n=1,205) and another in March 2002 (n=1,207), examining these issues with the same population segments, on behalf of Health Canada. This report makes reference to the findings of these previous studies, where applicable. Only changes that are statistically significant have been discussed in the report.

The survey was designed to include approximately equal numbers of respondents (360) in each of the ten provinces, and a ratio of 75 percent women and 25 percent male partners. Environics conducted the nation-wide survey of 3,633 respondents, including 2,724 women and 909 men, between March 1 and April 30, 2006.

The results for the total sample are weighted to reflect the actual populations of each of the provinces, as well as by age group for women, consistent with the weighting of the 2002 survey. The 2002 survey used 1996 census data and the 2006 survey used 2001 census data.

The margin of error for the full sample of women is  $\pm 1.9$  percentage points, 19 times in 20; the margin of error for the sample of men is  $\pm 3.3$  percentage points. The margin of error for each province (n= approximately 360) is  $\pm 5.2$  percentage points.

The survey examined knowledge and beliefs about alcohol use during pregnancy, awareness of FAS and FASD, recall of information and advertising about the impact of alcohol, preferred information sources and effectiveness of information initiatives, support for initiatives to provide information about the risks of alcohol use, and the expected behaviours of women and partners of women, during pregnancy.

This report presents the findings of the survey. The survey methods and the English and French questionnaires used in the survey are appended to this report. Detailed statistical tables are presented under separate cover.

#### 2.0 Summary of Findings

The major findings of the survey are:

- A slight majority (52%) say, top-of-mind, that cutting down or stopping using alcohol is among the most important thing pregnant women can do to increase the likelihood of having a healthy baby.
- When asked specifically about specific actions, there has been a clear decline since 2002 in the proportions who believe that most of these actions are one of the most important things that pregnant women can do to increase the likelihood that their baby will be born healthy. A clear majority (58%, down 5 points) strongly believe that cutting down or stopping alcohol use is one of the most important things that pregnant women can do to increase the likelihood that their baby will be born healthy. This view is down among both men (52%, down 7) and women (60%, down 4) since 2002, and is lower among women in the lowest socio-economic groups and those living in rural areas.
- A large majority (76%) are aware that *any* alcohol use during pregnancy is harmful to the baby; this view has increased progressively since 1999 among both men (68%, up 4 points from 2002, and 9 from 1999) and women (79%, up 9 points from 2002 and up 11 from 1999).
- There continues to be unanimous belief that the more alcohol pregnant women consume, the more likely the baby will be harmed and the more serious the effects.
- Majorities are also aware of the impact of small amounts of alcohol use. There have been progressive declines since 1999 in the numbers of men (45%, down 8 points from 2002 and down 12 from 1999) and women (34%, down 12 points from 2002 and down 15 from 1999) who think that a small amount of alcohol use during pregnancy can

- usually be considered safe. Awareness of the impact of small amounts of alcohol use is lower in Quebec and Ontario.
- Majorities are aware of the impact of specific amounts of alcohol use, but respondents are divided about the harmful effects of extremely small amounts of alcohol consumption — one or two drinks during the course of the pregnancy. Awareness of the harm done by all amounts has increased.
- There is unanimous belief that alcohol use during pregnancy can lead to life-long effects and that effects will not disappear as the child grows older. However, a sizable minority of almost four in ten believe that the effect of alcohol on the development of the fetus is unclear, and this view is higher in Quebec. Since 2002, there have been increases in the proportions of both men and women who do *not* believe this statement; this indicates that knowledge about the effects of alcohol on the development of the fetus has increased over the past four years.
- Although there is a very high level of recognition of the terms Fetal Alcohol Syndrome (FAS) or Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD), there is far less detailed knowledge as to what FAS and FASD actually involves. Recognition of the terms and more detailed knowledge remain lower in Quebec, but there has been a huge increase in recognition among Quebec women (up 25 points since 2002, and up 41 since 1999).
- A large majority are also familiar with alcohol-related birth defects, but once again, detailed knowledge of what these defects are is more limited. Quebec women are less likely than those in the rest of the country to express awareness of alcohol-related birth defects and to have detailed knowledge of what these defects are.

- A large majority recall seeing information about the effects of alcohol use on a baby during pregnancy, and recall among both men and women has increased since 2002. Quebec women remain less likely to recall this information, but this proportion is up 16 points since 2002.
- One-half recall advertising about alcohol use during pregnancy, FAS, FASD, or alcohol-related birth defects. Among those who recall this advertising, the largest proportion saw the advertising on television. Most do not recall the sponsor of this advertising, but the largest proportion (just over one in ten) mention the federal government or Health Canada.
- Television or other media, and a doctor or doctor's office are seen as the best sources of information about the effects of alcohol during pregnancy.
- Large majorities think sending information to doctors and health care professionals (72%), television advertising (69%), and placing posters in waiting rooms and clinics (67%) are very effective ways to inform them about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy. Smaller proportions think other initiatives tested would be very effective. Women are more likely than men to think all the initiatives tested would be very effective ways of reaching them on the subject of the risks of alcohol use.
- There is overwhelming approval, overall, of a number of initiatives to provide information about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy. Strong approval continues to be higher for government-sponsored advertising (78%) and warning messages on alcohol advertising (71%), especially compared

- to that for requiring warning signs in restaurants (45%). Women are more likely than men to strongly approve of all the initiatives tested.
- A large majority of women (72%) say they would stop alcohol use if they were to become pregnant. This proportion is lower among Quebec women, who are more likely than others to say they would just cut back on their alcohol use.
- Women are somewhat more likely to be motivated to lower their alcohol use during their pregnancy if they were encouraged by their spouse or partner to do so. However, majorities say their partner continuing to drink during their pregnancy, offering them a drink during their pregnancy or stopping drinking during their pregnancy, would have no effect on their use of alcohol.
- Fully one-half of women report not receiving advice from their doctor regarding alcohol consumption during pregnancy, including 38 percent of women who are currently pregnant. Among those who have received advice, the most common advice is that they should not drink alcohol at all.
- A large majority of men (87%) say they would be very likely to encourage their pregnant spouse to stop or cut back on her alcohol use during pregnancy; only about four in ten (43%) would be very likely to stop drinking alcohol themselves during their spouse or partner's pregnancy.

The detailed findings on each topic are discussed in the following sections.

#### 2.0 RÉSUMÉ DES RÉSULTATS

Les principaux résultats du sondage sont les suivants :

- Une légère majorité (52 %) de répondants affirment, spontanément, que réduire ou interrompre leur consommation d'alcool est une des choses les plus importantes que les femmes enceintes peuvent faire pour augmenter les chances que leur bébé naisse en bonne santé.
- Lorsqu'on invite les répondants à mentionner des gestes précis, nous observons nettement une diminution dans les proportions qui croient que la plupart de ces gestes sont les choses les plus importantes que les femmes enceintes peuvent faire pour augmenter les chances que leur bébé naisse en bonne santé. Une majorité nette (58 %, en baisse de 5 points) de répondants croient fortement que consommer moins d'alcool ou arrêter de consommer de l'alcool est une des choses les plus importantes que les femmes enceintes peuvent faire pour augmenter les chances que leur bébé naisse en bonne santé. Ce point de vue est en baisse tant chez les hommes (52 %, en baisse de 7) que les femmes (60 %, en baisse de 4) depuis 2002; il est aussi moins répandu chez les femmes appartenant aux groupes socio-économiques plus faibles et les personnes qui habitent les régions rurales.
- Une forte majorité (76 %) des répondants savent que *toute* consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse est dangereuse pour le bébé; ce point de vue augmente progressivement depuis 1999 tant chez les hommes (68 %, en hausse de 4 points depuis 2002 et de 9 depuis 1999) que chez les femmes (79 %, en hausse de 9 points depuis 2002 et en hausse de 11 depuis 1999).

- Les répondants continuent de croire à l'unanimité que plus une femme enceinte consomme d'alcool, plus il est probable que c'est dangereux pour le bébé et que les effets seront graves.
- Des majorités sont également sensibilisées aux répercussions de la consommation d'alcool en faible quantité. Nous observons une baisse progressive, depuis 1999, dans les proportions d'hommes (45 %, en baisse de 8 points depuis 2002 et en baisse de 12 depuis 1999) et de femmes (34 %, en baisse de 12 points depuis 2002 et en baisse de 15 depuis 1999) qui pensent qu'une petite quantité d'alcool peut être généralement considérée sécuritaire. La sensibilisation aux répercussions de petites quantités d'alcool consommé est plus faible au Québec et en Ontario.
- Des majorités connaissent les répercussions de quantités précises d'alcool consommé, mais les répondants sont divisés sur les effets dangereux des quantités extrêmement petites d'alcool consommé

  – une ou deux consommations pendant la grossesse.
   La sensibilisation aux ux dangers que représentent par toutes les quantités s'est accrue.
- C'est à l'unanimité que les répondants croient que la consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse peut entraîner des répercussions pour la vie et que ces effets ne disparaissent pas à mesure que l'enfant grandit. Cependant, une importante minorité de près de quatre sur dix croient que les effets de la consommation d'alcool sur le développement du foetus ne sont pas clairs; ce point de vue est plus répandu au Québec. Depuis 2002, il y a eu des augmentations dans les proportions d'hommes et de femmes qui ne croient pas cette affirmation; cela indique que les connaissances sur les effets de l'alcool sur le développement du foetus ont augmenté au cours des quatre dernières années.

- Même s'il existe un niveau de reconnaissance très élevé des expressions syndrome d'alcoolisme foetal (SAF) ou ensemble des troubles causés par l'alcoolisation foetale (ETCAF), on retrouve beaucoup moins de connaissances détaillées sur ce que signifient réellement le SAF ou ETCAF. La reconnaissance des expressions et des connaissances plus détaillées demeurent plus faibles au Québec, mais on note une remarquable augmentation de la reconnaissance chez les femmes du Québec (en hausse de 25 points depuis 2002 et en hausse de 41 depuis 1999).
- Une forte majorité de répondants connaissent également les malformations congénitales liées à l'alcool, mais là encore, les connaissances détaillées au sujet de ces malformations sont plus limitées. Les Québécoises ont moins tendance que les femmes du reste du pays à se dire sensibilisées aux malformations congénitales liées à l'alcool et à posséder des connaissances détaillées au sujet de ces malformations.
- Une forte majorité se rappellent avoir vu de l'information sur les effets de la consommation d'alcool sur un bébé pendant la grossesse; le niveau de rappel a augmenté tant chez les hommes que les femmes depuis 2002. Les Québécoises continuent d'avoir moins tendance à se rappeler cette information, mais cette proportion est en hausse de 16 points depuis 2002.
- La moitié des répondants se rappellent des messages publicitaires sur la consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse, le SAF, l'ETCAF ou les malformations congénitales liées à l'alcool. Chez ceux qui se rappellent cette publicité, la plus grande proportion a vu la publicité à la télévision. La plupart ne se rappellent pas qui a commandité cette publicité, mais la plus grande proportion (un peu plus d'un sur dix) mentionne le gouvernement fédéral ou Santé Canada.
- La télévision ou d'autres médias, ainsi que le médecin ou le bureau du médecin sont perçus comme étant les meilleures sources d'information sur les effets de l'alcool pendant la grossesse.
- De fortes majorités pensent qu'envoyer de l'information aux médecins et aux professionnels

- de la santé (72 %), la publicité à la télévision (69 %) et la pose d'affiches dans les salles d'attente et les cliniques (67 %) sont des façons très efficaces de les informer sur les effets de la consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse. Des proportions plus faibles pensent que d'autres initiatives proposées seraient très efficaces. Les femmes ont plus tendance que les hommes à penser que toutes les initiatives proposées seraient des façons très efficaces pour les rejoindre au sujet des risques de la consommation d'alcool.
- Nous observons un taux d'approbation impressionnant, dans l'ensemble, pour bon nombre de mesures destinées à fournir de l'information sur les risques de la consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse. Le taux d'approbation continue d'être plus élevé pour la publicité commanditée par le gouvernement (78 %) et les mises en garde dans la publicité sur l'alcool (71 %), en particulier comparativement à exiger des affiches dans les restaurants avertissant des risques (45 %). Les femmes ont plus tendance que les hommes à approuver fortement toutes les initiatives étudiées.
- Une forte majorité de femmes (72 %) affirment qu'elles cesseraient de consommer de l'alcool si elles devenaient enceintes. Cette proportion est plus faible chez les femmes du Québec qui ont plus tendance que d'autres à dire qu'elles réduiraient simplement leur consommation d'alcool.
- Les femmes ont quelque peu plus tendance à être motivées à réduire leur consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse si elles y sont encouragées par leurs mari ou leurs conjoints. Cependant, des majorités affirment que le fait que leur conjoint continue de boire de l'alcool pendant leur grossesse ou qu'il cesse d'en consommer pendant leur grossesse n'aurait aucune influence sur leur consommation d'alcool.
- La moitié des femmes rapportent nettement n'avoir pas reçu de conseils de leur médecin au sujet de la consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse, y compris 38 p. 100 des femmes qui sont présentement enceintes. Chez celles qui ont reçu des conseils, le conseil le plus répandu est qu'elle ne doivent pas du tout boire d'alcool.

• Une forte majorité d'hommes (87 %) affirment qu'il est très probable qu'ils encouragent leur conjointe enceinte à cesser de consommer de l'alcool ou à réduire sa consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse; quelque quatre sur dix seulement (43 %) affirment qu'il est très probable qu'ils cessent euxmêmes de boire de l'alcool pendant la grossesse de leur épouse ou de leur conjointe.

Les résultats détaillés sur chacun de ces sujets sont discutés dans les sections suivantes.

# 3.0 Behaviours to Increase Likelihood of Having Healthy Baby

#### 3.1 Top-of-Mind Awareness of Behaviours

Top-of-mind, majorities of respondents think good nutrition, cutting down or stopping alcohol use, and cutting down or stopping smoking are the most important things pregnant women can do to increase their likelihood of having a healthy baby.

Good nutrition, cutting down or stopping alcohol use, and cutting down or stopping smoking are seen as the most important behaviours that pregnant women can do to increase their likelihood of having a healthy baby.

Top-of-mind, majorities of respondents mention good nutrition (86%), cutting down or stopping alcohol use (52%), and cutting down or stopping smoking (51%) as the most important things that pregnant women can do to increase the likelihood that their baby will be born healthy. Four in ten (38%) mention increasing or maintaining physical activity, and two in ten each mention visiting a doctor or health professional (18%), and cutting down or stopping drug use (17%). Much smaller proportions mention other behaviours.

Comparison with the results of the March 2002 survey indicates that there has been an increase of four points in the number of men who mention cutting down on or stopping alcohol use, but this figure is still four points lower than that recorded in the November-December

1999 baseline survey. The number of women mentioning alcohol use has remained relatively unchanged over the three surveys.

Since 1999, there have been progressive increases in the number of women and men who mention, top-ofmind, eating well/good nutrition as the most important behaviours that pregnant women can do to increase their likelihood of having a healthy baby, and this may be related to the increasing number of media stories on the growing rates of obesity in North America and its negative impact on health. There has been a progressive decline since 1999 in the proportions of both women and men who mention cutting down or stopping smoking, and this may be related to reported declines of smoking among adults and increasing levels of anti-smoking legislation over the past number of years which has made it more difficult for people to smoke. Hence, this may have impacted on mention of this as a top-of-mind factor.

Among women, those with higher alcohol consumption are more likely to mention cutting down or stopping alcohol use; those aged 30 to 34 are less likely to mention this.

Women living in the Prairies are more likely to mention cutting down or stopping using alcohol; Quebec women are less likely to mention this.

# Behaviour to Increase Likelihood of Having a Healthy Baby Top-of-mind

down/stop alcohol use		DEC	CEMBER 1	999	М	ARCH 200	2		APRIL 20	06
down/stop alcohol use		TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	Men
down/stop alcohol use	Eat well/good nutrition/vitamins	75	78	66	79	82	70	86	87	80
Passe/maintain exercise/ pysical activity** 25 26 22 34 34 31 38 41 30  adoctor/health professional 11 13 6 20 23 9 18 20 10  down/stop drug use partijuana, crack, heroin, etc.) 14 14 15 16 17 14 17 17 14  rest/sleep*** 2 2 2 2 2 6 6 6 6 9 10 8  d stress 4 4 4 3 6 6 6 5 6 6 3  pre-natal class 2 2 2 * 4 5 5 2 4 4 3  uce exercise/physical activity*** 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 4 3 3 3  style/healthy living/taking  are of themselves  tive mental attitude 1 1 1 * 3 3 2 3 2 2 1  d environmental pollution 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1  d d escond-hand smoke 1 1 2 3 3 1 2 2 1  an about infant care * 1 - 2 2 2 2 2 1  and d second-hand smoke 1 1 2 3 3 1 1 1 1  restrictions/  and working conditions 1 1 1  d prescription medication 1 1 1  d prescription medication 1 1 1  and a drescription medication 1 1 1  d prescription medication 1 1 1  and a drescription medication	Cut down/stop alcohol use	52	50	58	49	49	50	52	51	54
nysical activity**	Cut down/stop smoking	63	61	71	58	56	63	51	49	55
Coctor/health professional   11   13   6   20   23   9   18   20   10	Increase/maintain exercise/									
down/stop drug use narijuana, crack, heroin, etc.) 14 14 15 16 17 14 17 17 17 14 rest/sleep*** 2 2 2 2 6 6 6 6 6 9 10 8 d stress 4 4 4 3 6 6 5 6 6 3 r-pre-natal class 2 2 2 * 4 5 2 4 4 3 r-pre-natal class 2 2 2 * 4 5 2 4 4 3 r-pre-natal class 2 2 2 * 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 r-folic acid 1 2 * 3 4 1 3 3 3 3 r-folic acid 1 2 * 3 4 1 3 3 3 3 r-folic acid 1 2 * 3 4 1 3 3 3 3 r-folic acid 1 1 2 * 3 4 1 1 3 3 3 3 r-folic acid 1 1 2 * 3 4 1 1 3 1 3 3 3 r-folic acid 1 1 2 * 3 4 1 1 3 1 3 3 3 r-folic acid 1 1 2 * 3 1 1 2 2 1 r-folic acid 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1	physical activity**	25	26	22	34	34	31	38	41	30
narijuana, crack, heroin, etc.) 14 14 15 16 17 14 17 17 14 rest/sleep*** 2 2 2 2 6 6 6 6 9 10 8 d stress 4 4 4 3 6 6 6 5 6 6 3 repre-natal class 2 2 2 * 4 4 5 2 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 repre-natal class 2 2 2 * 4 4 5 2 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 repre-natal class 3 repre-natal class 4 4 4 3 4 5 2 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 repre-natal class 4 4 4 5 5 2 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 repre-natal class 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 repre-natal class 4 6 7 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8	Visit doctor/health professional	11	13	6	20	23	9	18	20	10
rest/sleep***	Cut down/stop drug use									
d stress					16	17	14	17	17	
Pre-natal class	Get rest/sleep***	2	2	2	6	6	6	9	10	
Specified later   Specified	Avoid stress	4	4	3	6	6	5	6	6	3
Style/healthy living/taking	Take pre-natal class	2	2	*	4	5	2	4	4	3
style/healthy living/taking are of themselves  are of the	Reduce exercise/physical activity****	5	5	5	5	5	4	3	3	3
tive mental attitude	ake folic acid	1	2	*	3	4	1	3	3	3
d environmental pollution 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 1	Lifestyle/healthy living/taking care of themselves							3	3	4
to friends/family/social support	Positive mental attitude	1	1	*	3	2	3	2	2	1
d second-hand smoke	Avoid environmental pollution	2	2	1	2	2	1	2	2	2
n about infant care	Talk to friends/family/social support	1	1	1	2	3	1	2	2	1
cially stable/good job/regular hours/ bod working conditions	Avoid second-hand smoke	1	1	2	3	3	1	1	1	*
2   2   3   3   4   4   5   3   3   5   3   3   4   4   5   3   3   5   3   5   3   5   3   5   3   5   3   5   3   5   3   5   3   5   3   5   3   5   3   5   5	earn about infant care	*	1	_	2	2	2	1	1	1
d caffeine/reduce	Finacially stable/good job/regular hours/	_	_	_	_	_	_	1	1	*
rexertion/harmful actions/ ke precautions	Avoid caffeine/reduce	_	_	_	_	_	_	1	1	1
ke precautions       -       -       -       -       -       -       1       1       2         Id prescription medication       -       -       -       -       -       -       1       2       1       1       2       1       3       3       3       5       3       3       3       5       3       3       3       5       3       3       3       5       3       3       5       3       3       3       5       3       3       3       5       3       3       3       5       3       3       3       5       3       3       3       5       3       3       3       5       3       3       4       4       5       3       3       5       3       3       4       4       5       3       3       5       3       3       4       4       5       3       3       5       3       3       4       4       5       3 </td <td>Overexertion/harmful actions/</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	Overexertion/harmful actions/									
d prescription medication	take precautions	_	_	_	_	_	_	1	1	2
d home life/partner/relationship	Avoid prescription medication	_		_	_	_	_	1	1	1
natal care/ultrasounds/have kids young — — — — — — — — — 1 1 1 * er 3 3 4 4 5 3 3 5 3 ia 1 1 2 1 * 1 2 1 3	Good home life/partner/relationship	_	_	_	_	_	_	1	1	1
er 3 3 4 4 5 3 3 5 3 ia 1 1 2 1 * 1 2 1 3	Pre-natal care/ultrasounds/have kids youn	g –	_	_	_	_	_	1	1	*
a 1 1 2 1 * 1 2 1 3	Other	-	3	4	4	5	3	3	5	3
	dk/na									
	Loss than one persent							_		

<sup>\*</sup> Less than one percent

Note: Multiple answer possible

#### Q.1

Thinking about healthy infants and children, what, in your opinion, are the most important things that pregnant women can do to increase the likelihood that their baby will be born healthy? What things come to mind as important?

<sup>\*\*</sup> In 1999, was "increase/maintain exercise" only

<sup>\*\*\*</sup> In 1999, was "sleep well/enough"

<sup>\*\*\*\*</sup> In 1999, was "reduce exercise" only

## 3.2 Assessing the Importance of Specific Actions

Majorities say cutting down or stopping smoking, and cutting down or stopping using alcohol are among the most important things that pregnant women might do to increase the likelihood that they will have a healthy baby.

When asked about a series of specific actions, respondents say that cutting down or stopping using alcohol, and cutting down or stopping smoking are among the most important things that pregnant women might do to increase the likelihood that they will have a healthy baby.

When asked specifically to assess the importance of a number of behaviours, majorities overall think that all of the behaviours surveyed are at least very important things for pregnant women to do.

Looking at strongly held opinions on this question, majorities say cutting down or stopping using alcohol (58%), and cutting down or stopping smoking (58%) are both one of the most important things that pregnant women can do to increase the likelihood that their baby will be born healthy. Significant minorities also say the same of eating nutritious food (44%), visiting a doctor or health professional regularly (40%), and avoiding second-hand smoke (38%). Much smaller proportions place the same degree of importance on avoiding stressful situations (17%), avoiding environmental pollution (17%) and reducing strenuous physical activity (10%).

There have been noticeable declines since 2002 in the numbers of men who say that any of these behaviours are one of the most important things that pregnant women can do to increase the likelihood that their baby will be born healthy. Women are now less likely to say the same of eating nutritious food, cutting down or stopping smoking, visiting a doctor or health professional, cutting down or stopping using alcohol, and avoiding stressful situations. For women, the importance attributed to avoiding alcohol today is almost identical to that found in the 1999 survey.

The general decline in mentions of any of these behaviours as one of the most important things a pregnant women can do to increase the likelihood of having a healthy baby has in most cases (particularly among women) been accompanied by increases in the proportions who think these actions are "very important" and not led to increases in the proportions who think these actions are less or not at all important. Hence, when presented with a number of specific actions, there may be less of a tendency to single out one action as the most important, but rather see these specific actions as one of several behaviours that play a very important role in increasing the likelihood of a pregnant woman having a healthy baby.

Women in the lowest socio-economic groups and those who live in rural areas are less likely than others to say that cutting down or stopping using alcohol is one of the most important things that pregnant women might do to increase the likelihood that their baby will be born healthy, but they are as likely as others to say it is at least a very important thing to do.

Those with a university education are also much more likely than others to say that cutting down or stopping using alcohol is one of the most important things that pregnant women might do to increase the likelihood that their baby will be born healthy.

### Assessing the Importance of Specific Actions

	DE	CEMBER 1	999	M	ARCH 200	2		APRIL 20	06
	Total	Women	Men	Total	Women	Men	Total	Women	Men
Cut down or stop smoking									
One of most important	63	63	63	68	69	64	58	58	58
Very important	35	35	35	31	30	34	41	41	41
Less important	2	2	2	1	1	2	1	1	1
Not at all important	*	*	*	*	*	_	*	*	*
dk/na	*	*	_	_	_	_	*	*	_
Cut down or stop using alcohol									
One of most important	60	61	57	63	64	59	58	60	52
Very important	38	38	38	35	35	38	41	39	45
Less important	2	1	5	2	1	3	1	1	3
Not at all important	*	*	_	*	*	_	*	*	*
dk/na	_	-	_	_	_	_	*	*	*
Eat nutritious food									
One of most important	54	55	49	55	57	47	44	45	40
Very important	46	44	50	45	42	52	54	54	46
Less important	1	*	1	*	*	1	1	1	4
Not at all important	-	_	_	*	*	-	-	_	_
dk/na	*	*	-	_	-	-	*	_	*
Visit a doctor or health profession	al on a regul	ar basis							
One of most important	42	45	34	48	50	40	40	43	30
Very important	54	52	59	48	46	53	55	53	62
Less important	4	3	7	4	3	6	5	4	7
Not at all important	*	*	_	*	*	1	*	*	*
dk/na	*	*	_	*	*	_	*	*	*
* Less than one percent							(	ontinued .	

Q.2

Here are some things that pregnant women might do to increase the likelihood that their baby will be born healthy. In your opinion, is each of the following one of the most important things to do, a very important thing to do, a less important thing to do or not at all important to do?

### Assessing the Importance of Specific Actions

	DE	CEMBER 1	999	M	ARCH 200	2		APRIL 20	06
	TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	Men
Avoid second-hand smoke									
One of most important	36	36	36	41	40	42	38	38	37
Very important	54	54	53	52	53	50	57	56	59
Less important	9	9	10	6	6	6	5	5	4
Not at all important	*	*	1	1	*	1	*	*	*
dk/na	*	*	*	_	_	_	*	*	-
Avoid stressful situations									
One of most important	19	19	17	22	22	24	17	18	14
Very important	59	60	58	57	56	57	61	61	59
Less important	21	20	24	20	21	18	21	20	25
Not at all important	*	1	*	1	1	1	1	*	1
dk/na	1	1	1	*	*	_	*	*	*
Avoid environmental pollution									
One of most important	22	20	25	20	19	23	17	18	13
Very important	58	59	54	57	58	52	60	59	64
Less important	19	18	19	21	21	22	22	22	20
Not at all important	2	2	1	1	1	1	1	1	2
dk/na	1	1	1	1	1	2	*	*	1
Reduce strenuous physical activity									
One of most important	12	13	8	11	11	13	10	10	8
Very important	41	41	43	42	42	44	45	47	41
Less important	39	38	40	39	41	36	39	38	44
Not at all important	7	6	9	6	6	6	5	4	6
dk/na	1	1	*	1	1	1	1	1	1
* Less than one percent									

Q.2

Here are some things that pregnant women might do to increase the likelihood that their baby will be born healthy. In your opinion, is each of the following one of the most important things to do, a very important thing to do, a less important thing to do or not at all important to do?

#### 4.0 Effects of Alcohol Use During Pregnancy

#### 4.1 Beliefs about the Effects of Alcohol Use

There is unanimous belief that the more alcohol a pregnant women drinks, the more harm this may have on the baby, and that alcohol use during pregnancy leads to life-long disabilities in a child. Majorities are also aware of the impact of small amounts of alcohol use.

Respondents show a high awareness that more alcohol use is harmful, and that alcohol use can cause lifelong disabilities in a child. There is less awareness, although still at the majority level, of the impact of small amounts of alcohol use.

There is unanimous belief that the more alcohol a pregnant woman drinks, the more likely that the baby will be harmed (98%) and that the more alcohol a pregnant woman drinks, the more harm that may be done to the baby (97%). There is less belief, although still at a majority level, that *any* alcohol consumption during pregnancy can harm the baby (76%).

Much smaller proportions believe that alcohol use *before* a pregnancy begins can harm a baby, even if a woman stops alcohol use during the pregnancy (37%), that a small amount of alcohol use during pregnancy can usually be considered safe (37%), that a small amount of alcohol consumption during pregnancy would never lead to serious harm to the baby (20%), and that a moderate amount of alcohol consumption during pregnancy can usually be considered safe (19%).

The survey suggests growing awareness of the dangers of alcohol use, on a number of items, since 1999.

There have been progressive increases since 1999 in the proportions of both men (68%, up 4 points from 2002 and up 9 from 1999) and women (79%, up 9 points from 2002 and up 11 from 1999) who believe that any alcohol consumption during pregnancy can harm

the baby. There has been a decrease in the numbers of both men (45%, down 8 points from 2002 and down 12 from 1999) and women (34%, down 12 points from 2002 and down 15 from 1999) who think that a small amount of alcohol use during pregnancy can usually be considered safe, and there has also been a decrease since 2002 in the proportion of women (17%, down 6 points) who think that a moderate amount of alcohol consumption during pregnancy can usually be considered safe.

Men are more likely than women to believe that small amounts of alcohol consumption during pregnancy can usually be considered safe, that a small amount of alcohol consumption would never lead to serious harm to the baby, that a moderate amount of alcohol consumption during pregnancy can usually be considered safe, and are less likely to believe that any alcohol consumption during pregnancy can harm the baby. However, men are somewhat more likely to believe that alcohol use before a pregnancy begins can harm a baby, even if a woman stops alcohol use during pregnancy.

Looking specifically at women, we find that those aged 18 to 24 and those who are not mothers are less likely to think that small amounts of alcohol consumption during pregnancy can usually be considered safe and would never lead to serious harm to the baby. Those aged 18 to 24 are also less likely to believe that a moderate amount of alcohol use can usually be considered safe, while those with less income are more likely to believe this. Those with less education are more likely to believe that any alcohol consumption during pregnancy can harm the baby. Mothers are more likely to believe that alcohol use before a pregnancy begins can harm a baby, even if a woman stops alcohol use during pregnancy.

Women in Quebec, Ontario, Nova Scotia and British Columbia are more likely to believe that a small amount of alcohol consumption during pregnancy can usually be considered safe. Women in Quebec and Ontario are also more likely to believe that a small amount of alcohol consumption during pregnancy would never lead to serious harm to the baby. Quebec women are also more likely to believe that a moderate amount of alcohol use can usually be considered safe. Women in Newfoundland and the Prairie provinces are less likely to believe any of these three statements. Women in Newfoundland and the Prairie provinces are more likely to believe that any alcohol consumption during pregnancy can harm the baby, while those living in Nova Scotia, Quebec, Ontario and British Columbia are less likely to believe this statement.

Aboriginal people are more likely than non-Aboriginal people to believe that any alcohol consumption during pregnancy can harm the baby.

There is almost unanimous belief that alcohol use during pregnancy can lead to life-long disabilities in a child (95%). Almost the same proportion do *not* believe that most of the effects of alcohol use on a child usually disappear as the child grows older (91%). A majority reject the suggestion that the effect of alcohol use on the development of an unborn fetus is unclear (59%).

There has been a slight increase since 2002 in the numbers of both men (57%, up 8 points) and women (60%, up 3 points) who do not believe that the effect of alcohol use on the development of an unborn fetus is unclear. There have also been slight increases in the proportions of men who believe that alcohol use during pregnancy can lead to life-long disabilities in a child, and who do not believe that most of the effects of alcohol use on a child usually disappear as the child grows older.

Women with a university education are more likely to disagree that the effect of alcohol use on the development of an unborn fetus is unclear and that most of the effects of alcohol use on a child usually disappear as the child grows older.

Quebec women are more likely than others to agree that the effect of alcohol use on the development of an unborn fetus is unclear; Newfoundland women are much less likely to believe this. Quebec women are also more likely to believe that most of the effects of alcohol use on a child usually disappear as the child grows older.

### Beliefs about the Effects of Alcohol Use

	DE	CEMBER 19	999	M	ARCH 200	2		APRIL 2006	
	TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	Men
The more alcohol a pregnant woman the more likely that the baby will be									
True	98	98	99	98	98	97	98	97	98
Not true	1	1	1	2	2	2	2	2	2
dk/na	*	*	_	*	*	*	*	*	*
The more alcohol a pregnant woman the more harm may be done to the l									
True	98	98	97	98	98	98	97	97	98
Not true	2	2	3	2	2	2	2	2	2
dk/na	*	*	1	*	*	*	*	*	*
Alcohol use during pregnancy can le to life-long disabilities in a child.	ead								
True	89	89	87	92	94	89	95	96	93
Not true	8	8	9	5	3	9	3	2	5
dk/na	3	3	4	3	3	2	2	2	2
Any alcohol consumption during pregnancy can harm the baby.									
True	66	68	59	68	70	64	76	79	68
Not true	33	31	40	31	29	35	23	20	31
dk/na	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1
A small amount of alcohol use durin pregnancy can usually be considere									
True	51	49	57	48	46	53	37	34	45
Not true	46	49	40	51	52	46	62	64	54
dk/na	2	2	3	1	1	1	1	2	1
* Less than one percent					C	ontinued			

Q.3

Are each of the following statements true or is not true ...?

0.4

And are each of the following statements true or not true ...?

Note: Slightly different wording in 2006

# Beliefs about the Effects of Alcohol Use Continued

	DE	CEMBER 1	999	M	ARCH 200	2		APRIL 20	06
	TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	Men	Total	Women	MEN
Alcohol use before a pregnancy begi can harm a baby, even if a woman s alcohol use during the pregnancy.									
True	39	39	37	39	39	39	37	36	41
Not true	53	53	54	53	54	51	57	58	53
dk/na	8	8	9	8	8	10	6	6	6
The effect of alcohol use on the development of an unborn fetus is u	nclear.								
True	_	_	_	40	39	43	36	36	36
Not true	_	_	_	55	57	49	59	60	57
dk/na	_	_	_	5	5	8	5	5	7
A small amount of alcohol consump during pregnancy would never lead t serious harm to the baby.	0								
True	30	28	35	22	20	28	20	18	25
Not true	66	68	59	75	78	68	78	80	72
dk/na	4	4	6	2	2	3	2	2	3
A moderate amount of alcohol consumption during pregnancy can usually be considered safe.									
True	25	23	30	24	23	26	19	17	24
Not true	73	75	68	75	76	73	80	83	74
dk/na	2	2	2	2	1	2	1	1	1
Most of the effects of alcohol use or a child usually disappear as the child grows older.	l								
True	9	8	9	5	4	7	5	5	6
Not true	82	82	80	89	90	86	91	91	90
dk/na	10	9	10	6	7	6	4	4	5
* Less than one percent									

Q.3

Are each of the following statements true or is not true ...?

Q.4

And are each of the following statements true or not true ...?

Note: Slightly different wording in 2006

### 4.2 Beliefs about the Effects of Specific Amounts of Alcohol

There is unanimous belief that one alcoholic drink each day, or three or four alcoholic drinks each weekend during a pregnancy are unsafe for the baby. A sizeable majority also believe that two alcoholic drinks on two or three different occasions is not safe for the baby. Opinion is divided as to whether a total of one or two drinks during the pregnancy are safe.

When asked about specific amounts of alcohol consumption, respondents have a high awareness about the negative effect of large amounts of alcohol on the baby, and also have higher awareness of the negative effects of occasional drinking, but are divided as to whether there are harmful effects of very small amounts of alcohol use.

When asked about specific amounts of alcohol consumption in terms of its effect on a baby that is born, eight in ten respondents each believe it is not at all safe for a pregnant woman to drink three or four alcoholic drinks each weekend during the pregnancy (80%), or one alcoholic drink each day during the pregnancy (78%).

A clear majority believe that it is unsafe to drink two alcoholic drinks on two or three different occasions during the pregnancy (69%). However, opinion is divided as to the effect of drinking a total of one or two alcoholic drinks during the pregnancy (46% say this is safe; 54% say this is unsafe).

The survey shows noticeable increases in the view that all the amounts of alcohol mentioned in the survey are not safe. There have been progressive increases since 1999 in the number of women who think that consumption of three or four alcoholic drinks each weekend during the pregnancy (84%, up 6 points from 2002 and up 13 from 1999), two alcoholic drinks on two or three different occasions (45%, up 13 points from 2002 and up 17 from 1999), and a total of one or two alcoholic drinks during the pregnancy (36%, up 11 points from 2002 and up 15 from 1999) is not at all safe. There have also been progressive increases since 1999 in the proportion of men who think that consumption of three or four alcoholic drinks each weekend during the pregnancy (69%, up 4 points from 2002 and up 10 from 1999) and two alcoholic drinks on two or three different occasions (35%, up 5 points from 2002 and up 11 from 1999) as well as drinking one alcoholic drink each day (69%, up 6 points from 2002 and up 11 from 1999) is not at all safe.

Women are much more likely than men to think that consumption of any of these amounts of alcohol during pregnancy is not at all safe.

Women who were born outside of Canada and those who do not drink are more likely than others to think that a total of one or two alcoholic drinks during the pregnancy is not at all safe.

Manitoba women are more likely than Canadian women in general to think that of these amounts are not at all safe, particularly drinking two alcoholic drinks on two or three different occasions, or a total of one or two alcoholic drinks during the pregnancy; Quebec women are much less likely to think that these two smaller amounts of alcohol use are not at all safe.

Aboriginal people are more likely than non-Aboriginal people to think that two alcoholic drinks on two or three different occasions, or a total of one or two alcoholic drinks during the pregnancy are not at all safe.

# Beliefs about the Effects of Specific Amounts of Alcohol During Pregnancy

	DEC	CEMBER 1	999	M	ARCH 200	2		APRIL 20	006
	TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	Men
Three or four alcoholic drinks ea	ch weekend								
Very safe	1	*	1	*	*	1	1	1	1
Somewhat safe	4	3	7	3	2	6	2	1	4
Not very safe	27	25	32	22	20	28	17	14	26
Not at all safe	68	71	59	75	78	65	80	84	69
dk/na	*	*	-	*	-	*	*	*	*
One alcoholic drink each day									
Very safe	1	*	2	1	1	2	1	*	1
Somewhat safe	6	4	10	5	5	7	4	3	6
Not very safe	25	23	31	19	15	29	18	16	24
Not at all safe	69	72	58	75	79	63	78	81	69
dk/na	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*
Two alcoholic drinks on two or th	ree different d	occasions							
Very safe	12	11	16	10	8	14	6	4	9
Somewhat safe	35	34	38	34	33	36	25	24	30
Not very safe	25	26	22	25	26	20	26	26	26
Not at all safe	27	28	24	32	32	30	43	45	35
dk/na	1	1	1	*	*	*	*	*	*
A total of one or two alcoholic dr	inks								
Very safe	27	26	32	22	20	27	14	13	18
Somewhat safe	38	39	38	35	36	34	32	31	34
Not very safe	14	15	13	17	18	11	20	20	20
Not at all safe	20	21	17	26	25	27	34	36	27
dk/na	*	*	_	*	_	*	*	*	*
* Less than one percent									

Q.5

In terms of its effect on a baby that is born, do you think it would be very safe, somewhat safe, not very safe or not at all safe for a pregnant woman to drink each of the following amounts of alcohol ...?

### 5.0 Awareness of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome or Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder

## 5.1 Awareness of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome or Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder

Almost nine in ten report awareness of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome or Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder. Of these, the largest proportion say Fetal Alcohol Syndrome/Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder refers to disorders of the brain/ cognitive or learning disabilities.

Respondents report a high level of awareness of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome or Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder, but detailed knowledge of what these terms actually involve is more limited.

Almost nine in ten respondents (86%) say they have heard of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome or Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder. More than one in ten (14%) say they have not.

Among those who report awareness, the largest proportion say FAS/FASD refers generally to brain disorders or learning or cognitive disabilities/lower IQ/memory problems (42%). Others mention drinks when pregnant/fetus exposed to alcohol (29%), physical deformities/birth defects/organ formation (19%), develop-

mental problems/growth slower (17%), born addicted to drugs or alcohol/withdrawal symptoms/becoming an alcoholic (14%), behaviour problems/hyperactivity/violence/acting out (8%), variety of problems with the baby, effects, harm, failure to thrive or problems functioning in general (6%), life-long effects/no cure/ hereditary/Down Syndrome/seizures/autism/diabetes (5%), disability, disease, defects or disorders in general (5%), various facial features (5%), poor motor skills, co-ordination or nervous system damage (4%), small babies or lower birth weight (4%), emotional problems/personality or psychological disorder/difficulty coping/day-to-day relationships/special needs (4%), attention problems or ADD (4%), and colicky/poor immune system/respiratory/lack of oxygen/malnutrition/eating or sleeping disorders (4%). Twelve percent mention other descriptions. Twenty-one percent of those who say they are aware of FAS or FASD offer no description of it.

The numbers of women and men who say they have heard of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome or Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder are considerably higher in 2006 than in 1999 or 2002. In the two previous surveys, however, the question referred only to FAS, not FASD.

### Have heard of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome/Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder

	DEC	CEMBER 19	999	MARCH 2002			APRIL 2006		
	TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	MEN
otal Sample: Heard of									
Yes	71	72	68	77	81	66	86	88	81
No	29	28	32	22	19	34	14	12	19
dk/na	*	*	*	*	*	_	*	*	_

0.6a

Have you ever heard of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome or Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder? Note: Prior to 2006, the question asked about Fetal Alcohol Syndrome only Women, especially the better educated and more affluent and those born in Canada, are more likely than men to be aware of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome or Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder. Women are also more likely than men to offer a description of FAS or FASD, and are more likely to identify brain disorders/learning or cognitive disabilities, physical deformities/disabilities and behavioural problems. More highly educated women are more likely to mention brain disorders/learning or cognitive disabilities, physical deformities or disabilities, developmental problems and various facial features.

Quebec women remain less likely than those in other provinces to be aware of FAS or FASD (73% compared to 92% in the rest of Canada), but this number has increased by 25 points since 2002 and 41 points since 1999. Quebec women also less likely than those living in other provinces to offer a description of FAS or FASD, and are less likely to mention brain disorders/learning or cognitive disabilities, drinks when pregnant/fetus exposed to alcohol, physical deformities/disabilities and developmental problems. However, Quebec women are more likely to mention born addicted to drugs or alcohol/withdrawal symptoms.

#### What is Fetal Alcohol Syndrome/Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder?

		APRIL 2006	
	Total	Women	Men
Brain disorders/learning disabilities/cognitive/mental/lower IQ/memory problems	42	43	36
Drinks when pregnant/fetus exposed to alcohol	29	30	24
Physical deformities/disabilities/birth defects/organ formation	19	21	13
Developmental problems/growth/slower/chromosomes	17	18	15
Born adicted to drugs/alcohol/withdrawal symptoms/poison/becoming an alcoholic	14	14	13
Behavioural problems/hyperactivity/violence/acting out	8	8	5
Variety/problems with baby/effects/harm/failure to thrive/problems functioning (general)	6	7	5
Life-long effects/no cure/hereditary/Down Syndrome/seizures/autism/diabetes	5	6	4
Disability/disease/defects/disorders/deformed (general)	5	6	4
Facial features (various)/like Down Syndrome	5	6	3
Poor motor skills/co-ordination/nervous system damage	4	4	5
Small babies/lower birth weight	4	5	3
Emotional problems/personality/psychologocal disorder/difficulty coping/day-to-day relationships/special needs	4	5	3
Attention problems/ADD	4	4	3
Colicky/poor immune system/respiratory/lack of oxygen/malnutrition/eating/sleep disorders/complications/needs meds	4	4	3
Right or wrong/judgement/descision-making problems/poor impulse control	3	3	2
Social problems/disabilities	3	3	1
Wide/abnormal eyes	2	3	2
Death/miscarriage/still born/premature	2	2	2
Speech/communications problems/deafness/blindness	2	2	1
Other	*	*	1
dk/na	21	18	31

Q.6b

Can you tell me what Fetal Alcohol Syndrome or Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder is? What happens with Fetal Alcohol Syndrome or Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder?

Subsample: Have heard of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome or Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder

Note: Prior to 2006, the question asked about Fetal Alcohol Syndrome only

### 5.2 Awareness of Alcohol-Related Birth Defects

Three-quarters of respondents report awareness of alcohol-related birth defects. Of these, the most common descriptions are brain disorders/development/mental retardation or disabilities, and FAS/FASD/FAE.

A large majority of respondents express awareness of alcohol-related birth defects. As with Fetal Alcohol Syndrome or Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder, detailed knowledge of what alcohol-related birth defects are, remains more limited.

Three-quarters of respondents (76%) have heard of alcohol-related birth defects. One-quarter (24%) say they have not.

Among those who report awareness, the most common descriptions are brain disorders/development/damage/mental retardation or disabilities (22%) and FAS/ FASD/FAE (20%). Fewer mention physical deformities or disabilities or birth defects (15%), slow comprehension/memory problems/low IQ/poor judgment, decision-making or impulse control (14%), drinks when pregnant/fetus exposed to alcohol (10%), developmental problems/fetus/growth/genes/genetics (10%), small heads/babies/lower birth weight (8%), various facial features (7%), disability, defects or deformities in general (6%), organ damage or failure, skin fused, jaundice, eczema (6%), attention problems/ADD (4%), problems with the baby/harm/unhealthy/effects in general (4%), and born addicted to drugs or alcohol/withdrawal symptoms (4%). Twenty-eight percent mention other descriptions. Twenty-five percent of those who say they are aware offer no description.

The number of men who say they are aware of alcohol-related birth defects is up 12 points from the 2002 survey (which asked about Fetal Alcohol Effects or alcohol-related birth defects). The number of women expressing awareness remains the same as 2002, although higher than in 1999.

Among women, those who are better educated, particularly those with a university education, are more likely to express awareness of alcohol-related birth defects and to give more detailed knowledge of what alcohol-related birth defects involve. Women aged 25 to 29 are less likely than others to be able to offer a description of alcohol-related birth defects

Quebec women are less likely than those in other provinces to be aware of alcohol-related birth defects (62% compared to 81% in the rest of Canada). Quebec women who are aware of alcohol-related birth defects are less likely to offer a description, and are less likely to mention FAS/FASD/FAE, drinks when pregnant/fetus exposed to alcohol and slow comprehension/memory problems/low IQ.

Those with a university education are more likely than others to be aware of alcohol-related birth defects, but are not significantly more likely to demonstrate detailed knowledge of what they are.

Aboriginal people are more likely than non-Aboriginal people to be aware of alcohol-related birth defects, but are not significantly more likely to demonstrate detailed knowledge of what alcohol-related birth defects are.

#### Have Heard of Alcohol-related Birth Defects?

	DEC	CEMBER 1	999	M	ARCH 200	APRIL 2006			
	Total	Women	Men	Total	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	Men
Total Sample: Heard of									
Yes	56	64	34	72	76	61	76	76	73
No	43	36	65	28	24	38	24	24	26
dk/na	*	*	1	*	*	1	*	*	*
* Less than one percent									

Q.7a

Have you ever heard of alcohol-related birth defects?

Note: Prior to 2006, the question was: "Have you ever heard of Fetal Alcohol Effects or alcohol-related birth defects?"

### What are Alcohol-related Birth Defects?

		APRIL 2006	
	TOTAL	Women	Men
Brain disorders/development/damage/mental retardation/disabilities	22	22	23
FAS/FASD/FAE	20	21	19
Physical deformities/disabilities/birth defects	15	16	15
Slow comprehension/memory problems/low IQ/poor judgement/decision-making/impulse control	14	14	14
Drinks when pregnant/fetus exposed to alcohol	10	10	11
Development problems/fetus/growth/genes/chromosomes/genetics	10	10	10
Small heads/babies/lower birth weight	8	9	4
Facial features/mongoloid/physical appearane/club feet/cleft lip (various)	7	9	3
Disability/defects/deformities (general)	6	6	5
Organ damage/deformities/failure/skin fused/bruised/jaundice/eczema	6	5	6
Attention problems/ADD	4	4	5
Problems with baby/harm/unhealthy/effects (general)	4	4	4
Born addicted to drugs/alcohol/withdrawl symptoms/prone to alcoholism later	4	4	4
Behaviour problems	3	4	1
Colic/joint/respiratory problems/lack of O2 nutrients/eating/blood disorders/enviro sensitivities	3	3	4
Missing/deformed/shortened limbs/digits/extra	3	3	3
Nervous system damage/poor motor skills/spina bifida/slower/seizures	3	4	1
Wide/abnormal eyes	3	3	2
Blindness/sight loss/hearing issues/speech/communication problems	3	3	1
Emotional problems/difficulty copying day-to-day/special needs/relationships/keeping a job	2	3	2
Premature/low birth weight	2	2	2
Down Syndrome/Cerebral Palsy/autism/Turette's Syndrome/epilepsy/schizophrenia	2	2	3
Death/still born/SIDS/miscarriage/life-long effects/hereditary	2	2	1
Social problems	1	1	1
Other	1	1	1
dk/na	25	23	28

*Q.7b* 

Can you tell me what alcohol-related birth defects are?

Subsample: Have heard of alcohol-related birth defects

# 6.0 Recall of Information and Advertising about the Effects of Alcohol Use

#### 6.1 Top-of-mind Recall of Information

Seven in ten recall seeing information about the effects of alcohol use on a baby during pregnancy.

There is significant recall of information about the effects of alcohol use on a baby during pregnancy.

Seven in ten respondents (69%) recall seeing information about the effects of alcohol use on a baby during pregnancy. Three in ten (30%) do not recall seeing any information on this topic.

There have been increases since 2002 in the numbers of both men and women (up six points each) who recall seeing any information about the effects of alcohol use on a baby during pregnancy.

Women, especially those aged 30 to 34, those with a university education, those who are mothers and those who are currently pregnant, are more likely than men to recall seeing any information about the effects of alcohol use on a baby during pregnancy.

Women living in the Prairies are somewhat more likely to recall any such information. Quebec women are somewhat less likely to recall any such information – 65 percent of Quebec women say they have seen any information – but this proportion has increased by 16 points since 2002.

Those living in the Prairie provinces are more likely than those in other parts of the country to recall any such information.

#### Recall of Information about the Effects of Alcohol Use

	DECEMBER 1999			M	MARCH 2002			APRIL 2006		
	TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	Men	
Yes	72	74	64	63	66	54	69	72	60	
No	28	25	36	37	34	45	30	27	39	
dk/na	*	*	_	1	*	1	1	1	*	

0.8

Do you recall seeing any information about the effects of alcohol use on a baby during pregnancy?

#### 6.2 Top-of-mind Recall of Advertising

One-half recall seeing advertising about alcohol use during pregnancy, FAS, FASD, or alcohol-related birth defects. Of these, the largest proportions recall ads that tell you not to drink, smoke, or use drugs during pregnancy.

One-half of respondents (49%) recall seeing or hearing any ads about alcohol use during pregnancy, FAS, FASD or alcohol-related birth defects over the past several months. A bare majority of 51 percent do not recall any such advertising.

Since 2002, there has been a decrease among men who recall ads about alcohol use during pregnancy, FAS, FASD or alcohol-related birth defects.

Among those who report awareness, the largest proportion remember ads that tell you not to drink, smoke or use drugs during pregnancy (38%). Others mention various media ads in general (27%), ads that tell you no amount of alcohol is safe, that we do not know how much is safe or that the more you drink, the more it can hurt the baby (12%), ads that show a figure of a pregnant woman, a belly or shows a fetus in womb (10%), ads that show the results of FAS in the form of children with disabilities, damage, developmental problems, negative or life-long effects (10%), ads seen at doctor's office, school, or pharmacy (6%), ads seen at bars, restaurants, public restrooms or transit (6%), various slogans (5%), pregnant woman holding drink/deciding whether to drink or not (3%), healthy choices/choice not to drink/baby has no choice (3%), call for information/government/MADD (3%) and causes birth defects (3%). Seventeen percent mention other descriptions. Twenty-one percent offer no description at all.

### Ads about Alcohol Use during Pregnancy 2002 – 2006

	IV	IARCH 200	12		APRIL 2006	
	TOTAL	Women	Men	Total	Women	Men
RECALL ADS						
Yes	51	52	48	49	50	44
No	48	48	51	51	49	55
dk/na	1	1	1	*	1	*
WHAT DO YOU RECALL ABOUT ADS?						
Don't drink/smoke/use drugs/warning	gs/stats			38	38	39
Ads various media				27	27	23
No amount of alcohol safe/don't know safe/more you drink, more harm b		h is		12	14	8
Shows results of FAS: kids w disabili problems/life-long effects	ties/develo	pment		10	10	10
Shows figure of pregnanat woman/be	llv/fetus in	womh		10	11	4
Ads seen at doctor's office/school/ph		WOIIID		6	7	3
Ads seen at bars/restaurants/public r		ransit		6	7	1
Slogans (various)	0011001110/11	anon		5	5	5
Pregnant woman holding drink/decid	ina to drinl	c or not		3	3	5
Healthy choices/choice not to drink/l	-			3	4	2
Call for info/government/MADD	,			3	3	2
Causes birth defects				3	3	2
Documentaries/interviews/news/artic who drank while pregnant	les re FAS,	/women		2	3	1
Baby crying/sick/in crib/mother drink	rina & drivi	ina		2	2	1
Roulette/beer bottle spins/dice/drink				1	2	1
Shows picture of a child/baby (unspe		11010		1	2	1
Shows glass/drink with circle & cross	,	drink symb	ol	1	1	1
Friends/family/partner/husband not o		,		1	2	*
Pregnant woman & friends at bar/frie	-			1	1	*
Girls at party/refused drink/bartender	would not	serve		1	1	1
Shows pregnant woman drinking				1	1	1
Kangaroo with baby in pouch/bunny/ with this picture?	what's wro	ng		1	1	*
Baby in crib w bottle mobile overhea baby born/baby in incubator w tubes	d/woman c	rying after		1	1	_
Fetus in ice cubes/embryo in bottle o	of alcohol			1	1	*
Other				3	3	1
dk/na				21	19	30
* Less than one percent						

Q.9a Do you recall seeing or hearing any ads about alcohol use during pregnancy, Fetal Alcohol Syndrome, Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder, or alcohol-related birth defects over the past several months? This would include ads on television, billboards, posters, radio, newspapers or magazines. Note: In 2006, Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder was added to the question Q.9bPlease tell me everything you can remember about this ad (these ads). Subsample: Those who recall seeing or hearing any ads about alcohol use during pregnancy, Fetal Alcohol Syndrome, Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder, or alcohol-related birth defects over the past several months

Among those who recall seeing or hearing such advertising, more than six in ten (63%) do not recall the sponsor. More than one in ten (13%) say that the advertising was sponsored by the federal government or Health Canada. Smaller proportions mention a provincial government (8%), health organization/NGO (5%), provincial liquor board/agency (4%) or MADD (3%). Twelve percent mention other sponsors.

There have been increases since 2002 in the numbers of both men and women who identify the sponsor of the advertising they have seen as a provincial government, but a decline in the proportion of women who identify the federal government or Health Canada as the sponsor of this advertising.

### Ads about Alcohol Use during Pregnancy 2002 – 2006

	N	ARCH 200	2	APRIL 2006			
	TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	MEN	
WHO SPONSORED ADVERTISING?							
Federal government/Health Canada	22	23	20	13	12	15	
Provincial government	3	3	2	8	8	11	
Health organization/NGO	9	10	6	5	5	5	
Provincial liquor board/agency	2	2	2	4	4	5	
MADD				3	3	1	
Alcohol manufacturer/beer company	2	3	2	2	1	4	
Other government/municipal							
government	2	3	1	2	2	4	
Other	4	5	3	8	8	7	
dk/na	60	58	67	63	64	58	
WHERE DID YOU NOTICE ADVERTISEMENT(S)?							
Television	60	56	72	55	51	69	
Doctor/hospital/clinic	24	27	16	23	26	15	
Magazines	23	26	16	18	17	20	
Restaurant/bar	5	7	_	9	11	2	
Radio	11	11	11	7	6	9	
Poster	9	10	4	7	8	5	
Pamplet/brochure	6	7	4	7	8	4	
Newspapers	10	7	17	6	5	9	
Billboards	5	5	7	5	5	5	
Liquor stores/bottles – wine, beer	2	2	_	4	4	3	
Public transit	2	2	3	4	4	4	
School	2	3	_	3	4	*	
Public washrooms	_	_	_	2	3	*	
Community centres/social services	_	_	_	2	2	_	
Workplace	2	2	_	1	*	2	
Internet/website banner ad	1	1	2	1	2	*	
Cigarette packages	1	1	2	_	_	_	
Other	7	8	3	8	13	5	
dk/na	3	3	4	2	2	2	
* Less than one percent							

Do you recall who sponsored this advertising? Subsample: Respondents who recall seeing or hearing any ads about alcohol use during pregnancy, FAS, FASD or alcohol-related birth defects over the past several months Q.9d Where did you notice this (these) advertisement(s)? Did you notice it (them) anywhere else? Subsample: Respondents who recall seeing or hearing any ads about alcohol use during pregnancy, FAS, FASD or alcohol-related birth defects over the past several months

Note: In 2006, Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder was added to the question Among those who recall advertising, the largest proportions say they noticed this advertising on television (55%). Smaller numbers mention a doctor, hospital or clinic (23%), magazines (18%), restaurant or bar (9%), a poster (7%), a brochure or pamphlet (7%), radio (7%), newspapers (6%), billboards (5%), public transit (4%), and liquor or beer store (4%). Seventeen percent mention other locations.

There have been decreases since 2002 in the proportions of women who say they noticed this advertising on television, magazines and the radio.

Women are more likely than men to recall seeing or hearing any ads about alcohol use during pregnancy, FAS, FASD, or alcohol-related birth defects. Women are more likely than men to recall advertising that tells you no amount of alcohol is safe, that we do not know how much is safe or that the more you drink, the more it can hurt the baby, or ads that show a figure of a pregnant woman, a belly or shows a fetus in womb. Women are more likely than men to mention noticing such advertising at a doctor's office/hospital/clinic, restaurant or bar, pamphlet or brochure, a school and public washrooms. Men are more likely than women to mention television and newspapers.

When we look specifically at women, we find that those who are mothers and those who have had a child in the past five years are more likely to recall advertising on these topics; those living in the largest metropolitan areas are less likely to recall such advertising. Women born in Canada are more likely to recall advertising that tells you no amount of alcohol is safe, that we do not know how much is safe or that the more you drink,

the more it can hurt the baby. Women born in Canada are more likely to identify the sponsor of the advertising they have seen as a provincial government and a health organization/NGO. The least educated women are more likely to mention a pamphlet or brochure and newspapers. Mothers are more likely to mention doctor/hospital/clinic and magazines. Women who are not mothers and those living in the largest metropolitan areas are more likely to mention a restaurant/bar.

Women in Quebec are much less likely to have seen advertising on these topics. Alberta women are more likely to recall advertising that tells you no amount of alcohol is safe, that we do not know how much is safe or that the more you drink the more it can hurt the baby, while New Brunswick women are more likely to recall advertising that show the results of FAS in the form of children with disabilities, damage, developmental problems, negative or life-long effects. Manitoba women are more likely to identify the sponsor of the advertising they have seen as a provincial liquor board or agency. Women living in the Prairies are more likely to mention noticing the ads on television. Women in Newfoundland, Prince Edward Island and Nova Scotia are more likely to mention magazines. Prince Edward Island women are also more likely to mention a doctor/hospital/clinic. British Columbian women are more likely to mention restaurant/bar. Quebec women are more like to mention pamphlet or brochure, but are less likely to mention a doctor/hospital/clinic.

Aboriginal people are more likely to recall seeing or hearing any ads about alcohol use during pregnancy, FAS, FASD, or alcohol-related birth defects.

#### 7.0 Information Sources

#### 7.1 Best Source of Information

The largest proportions of respondents say television or other media, followed by a doctor or doctor's office, would be the best source of information about the effects of alcohol use during pregnancy.

Respondents are most likely to mention television or other media, followed by a doctor or doctor's office, as the best source of information for them about the effects of alcohol use during pregnancy.

The largest numbers of respondents say television or other media (37%), and a doctor or doctor's office (30%) would be the best source of information for them to learn about the effects of alcohol use during pregnancy. Much smaller proportions would first look to Internet sources (6%), books or magazines (4%), pamphlets, brochures, flyers or literature (3%), school

or education (3%), health clinics/hospitals (3%) and alcohol bottles/vendors (3%). Seven percent mention other sources of information.

These findings are very similar to the 2002 survey. There has been a slight increase since 2002 in the numbers of both men and women who say television or other media would be the best source of information, and a decrease in the number of men who mention a doctor or doctor's office.

Women, especially those with a university education, are more likely than men to mention a doctor or doctor's office as a good source of information about the effects of alcohol use during pregnancy. Men are slightly more likely than women to mention television or other media.

Newfoundland women are more likely to mention television or other media. Ontario women are more likely to mention doctor/doctor's office.

#### Best Source of Information about Effects of Alcohol Use

	DEC	CEMBER 19	999	М	ARCH 200	APRIL 2006			
	TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	Women	Men
TV/other media**	8	7	10	34	32	37	37	36	41
Doctor/doctor's office	47	48	43	32	33	27	30	33	20
Internet sources	5	3	10	7	6	9	6	5	10
Books/magazines	10	11	7	7	8	3	4	5	3
Health clinic/hospital	9	9	10	5	5	6	3	3	2
Health Canada/flyers and pamphlets	4	4	5	4	4	5	3	3	4
Alcohol bottles/vendors	0	0	0	1	1	1	3	3	5
Library/school	1	1	*	2	2	2	3	2	4
Posters/billboards	0	0	0	1	1	1	2	2	1
Pre-natal class	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	2
Seeing affected child/drinking mother	_	_	_	*	*	_	1	1	*
Advertising	-	-	_	_	_	_	1	1	1
Through friends/family	1	1	1	1	1	*	*	*	1
Workplace	1	1	0	*	*	_	*	*	*
Pharmacy/drug store	*	*	0	*	*	1	*	*	*
Newspapers	1	1	2	1	*	2	_	_	_
Other media	1	1	*	*	*	*	_	_	_
Public health organizations/programs	1	2	1	*	*	1	_	_	_
Journals	_	_	_	*	*	*	_	-	-
Other	1	1	2	1	1	*	2	3	2
dk/na	5	5	4	3	3	3	4	4	4

<sup>\*</sup> Less than one percent

Note: Multiple answers possible

#### Q.11

What, for you, would be the best source of information about the effects of alcohol use during pregnancy?

Note: Prior to 2006, the question was: "What, for you, would be the best source of information about Fetal Alcohol Syndrome and about the effects of alcohol use during pregnancy?"

<sup>\*\*</sup> In 1999, was "TV programs/advertisements" and "Other media"

### 7.2 Government of Canada Information Initiatives

Large majorities think that sending information to doctors and health care professionals, television advertising, and placing posters in waiting rooms and clinics would be very effective ways to inform them about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy.

Majorities of two-thirds or more think that sending information to doctors and health care professionals, television advertising, and placing posters in waiting rooms and clinics would be very effective ways for the Government of Canada to inform them about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy. Between three and four in ten each think that other initiatives examined would be very effective in achieving this goal.

Majorities think that sending informational materials to doctors and health care professionals so they can inform their patients (72%), television ads (69%), and posters in waiting rooms and clinics (67%) would be very effective ways to reach them on the subject of the effects of alcohol use during pregnancy. Four in ten or fewer each think that posters or brochures in pharmacies or drug stores (43%), ads on buses, subways or in bus shelters (39%), radio ads (39%), inserts and advertising in magazines or newspapers (38%), pamphlets, brochures or other publications (35%), or a website (29%) would be very effective ways to reach them on this subject.

There has been an increase since 2002 in the numbers of both women and men who think that sending informational materials to doctors would be very effective in reaching them. There have also been increases in the proportion of women who think that posters in

waiting rooms and clinics, and posters or brochures in pharmacies or drug stores would be very effective, but a decrease in the number of women who say the same about television ads.

Women are more likely than men to say that all of these initiatives would be very effective ways of reaching them on the subject of the risks of alcohol use. Women aged 18 to 24 are more likely to say that posters or brochures in pharmacies or drug stores would be a very effective way of reaching them. Women born outside of Canada are more likely to say that television ads, ads on buses, subways and in bus shelters, inserts and advertising in magazines or newspapers, and radio ads would be very effective. Mothers are more likely to say that sending informational materials to doctors, posters waiting rooms and clinics, radio ads, and pamphlets, brochures or other publications would be very effective ways of reaching them on this subject.

Atlantic Canadian women are more likely to say that television ads, posters or brochures in pharmacies or drug stores, and pamphlets, brochures or other publications would be very effective ways of reaching them. New Brunswick women are more likely to say inserts and advertising in magazines or newspapers would be very effective. Newfoundland women are more likely to say the same of a website. Prince Edward Island women are more likely to say that radio ads would be a very effective means of reaching them.

Aboriginal people are more likely to say that television ads, posters or brochures in pharmacies or drug stores, ads on buses, subways or in bus shelters, radio ads, and inserts and advertising in magazines or newspapers would be very effective ways of reaching them on the subject of the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy.

#### Initiatives to Inform about the Effects of Alcohol Use

	N	IARCH 200	2		APRIL 2006	
	Total	Women	MEN	Total	Women	Men
Sending info materials to doctors/health	care nrofi	eccionale to	inform n	atients		
Very effective	67	70	56	72	75	62
Somewhat effective	25	23	30	22	20	26
Not very effective	8	6	14	6	4	12
dk/na	_	_	_	*	*	_
Television ads						
Very effective	72	74	67	69	70	65
Somewhat effective	21	20	25	25	23	28
Not very effective	6	6	8	6	6	7
dk/na	*	_	*	*	*	_
Posters in waiting rooms and clinics						
Very effective	60	62	52	67	72	52
Somewhat effective	32	31	35	29	25	39
Not very effective	8	6	13	5	3	9
dk/na	_	_	_	_	_	_
Posters/brochures in pharmacies/drug sa	tores					
Very effective	40	42	36	43	47	33
Somewhat effective	43	42	43	41	40	45
Not very effective	17	16	21	15	13	21
dk/na	_	_	_	*	*	*
Ads on buses/subways/bus shelters						
Very effective	40	44	30	39	43	29
Somewhat effective	35	33	42	36	34	41
Not very effective	24	23	28	25	23	30
dk/na	*	*	*	*	*	*
Radio ads						
Very effective	39	39	41	39	40	36
Somewhat effective	43	44	43	42	41	45
Not very effective	17	17	16	19	19	19
dk/na	*	*	_	*	*	_
Inserts/ads in magazines/newspapers						
Very effective	36	38	28	38	41	27
Somewhat effective	47	45	51	45	43	49
Not very effective	17	16	21	18	16	23
dk/na	-	_	-	*	*	-
Pamphlets/brochures/other publications						
Very effective	34	38	25	35	39	52
Somewhat effective	47	45	54	50	48	55
Not very effective	18	17	20	16	13	23
dk/na	*	_	1	*	*	_
Website						
Very effective	27	28	24	29	30	26
Somewhat effective	40	40	42	40	41	38
Not very effective	33	32	33	30	29	35
dk/na	*	*	*	*	*	*
*Less than one percent						

Q.12 The government of Canada is considering some initiatives to inform and raise awareness about the effects of alcohol use during pregnancy. Would each of the following be a very, somewhat, or not very effective way to reach you on this subject ... A website ... Sending informational materials to doctors and health care professionals so they can inform their patients ... Posters in waiting rooms and clinics ... Inserts and advertising in magazines or newspapers ... Ads on buses, subways or in bus shelters ... Pamphlets, brochures or other publications ... Posters or brochures in pharmacies or drug stores ... Television ads ... Radio ads?

# 8.0 Support For Initiatives to Provide Information about the Risks of Alcohol Use

Overwhelming numbers of respondents approve of a number of initiatives to provide information about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy.

Overwhelming numbers of 80 percent or more of respondents are supportive overall of a number of initiatives to provide information about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy.

In addition, large majorities *strongly* approve of government-sponsored advertising describing the effects and warning about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy (78%), and requiring messages on alcohol advertising warning about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy (71%). Smaller numbers, but still majorities, strongly approve of requiring labels on alcohol products warning about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy (62%), and requiring signs in bars and clubs warning about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy (60%). Less than a majority (45%) strongly approve of requiring signs in restaurants warning about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy.

Comparing the results of the 1999 survey (questions were not asked in 2002), we find increases in the

number of women who strongly approve of requiring warning signs in bars and clubs (65%, up 8 points), and requiring warning signs in restaurants (48%, up 6 points). There has been a decrease in the proportion of men who strongly approve of requiring warning labels on alcohol products (52%, down 5 points).

Women are more likely than men to strongly approve of all of these initiatives to provide information about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy. Women who are mothers are more likely to strongly approve of most of these initiatives, the only exception being government-sponsored advertising.

Newfoundland women are more likely to strongly approve of government-sponsored advertising, warning messages on alcohol advertising, and warning labels on alcohol products. Women in Prince Edward Island and Nova Scotia are also more likely to strongly approve of warning labels on alcohol products.

Aboriginal people are more likely than non-Aboriginal people to strongly approve of all of these initiatives to provided information about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy.

#### Initiatives to Provide Information about Risks of Alcohol Use

	DI	-OEMBED 40	00	APRIL 2006					
	Total	ECEMBER 19 Women	Men	Total	WOMEN	Men			
Covernment energy of educations	TOTAL	VVOIVILIN	IVILIN	TOTAL	VVOIVILIV	IVILIN			
Government-sponsored advertising	70	0.4	70	70	0.0	70			
Strongly approve	78	81	70	78	80	70			
Somewhat approve	19	17	25	19	17	24			
Somewhat disapprove	2	2	2	2	2	3			
Strongly disapprove	1	1	3	1	1	2			
dk/na			_	,	,	,			
Required warning messages on alcohol a									
Strongly approve	73	76	62	71	74	62			
Somewhat approve	22	20	29	24	21	30			
Somewhat disapprove	3	3	5	4	4	4			
Strongly disapprove	2	1	4	1	1	4			
dk/na	_	_	_	*	*	1			
Required warning labels on alcohol produ	ucts								
Strongly approve	66	69	57	62	66	52			
Somewhat approve	24	22	30	25	24	29			
Somewhat disapprove	7	6	8	8	7	11			
Strongly disapprove	4	3	5	4	3	8			
dk/na	*	*	_	*	*	1			
Required warning signs in bars and clubs	S								
Strongly approve	55	57	46	60	65	48			
Somewhat approve	28	26	31	25	24	30			
Somewhat disapprove	11	10	12	9	7	13			
Strongly disapprove	7	6	10	5	4	8			
dk/na	*	*	*	*	*	1			
Required warning signs in restaurants									
Strongly approve	40	42	33	45	48	36			
Somewhat approve	38	37	38	35	34	37			
Somewhat disapprove	14	13	16	14	13	17			
Strongly disapprove	8	7	12	6	4	10			
dk/na	*	*	*	*	*	1			
*Less than one percent									

Q.10 Do you strongly approve, somewhat approve, somewhat disapprove or strongly disapprove of each of the following ... Requiring labels on alcohol products warning about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy ... Requiring signs in restaurants warning about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy ... Requiring signs in bars and clubs warning about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy ... Governmentsponsored advertising describing the effects and warning about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy ... Requiring messages on alcohol advertising that would warn about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy?

#### 9.0 Women and their Partners

#### 9.1 Alcohol Use During Pregnancy

Seven in ten women say they would stop alcohol use if they were to become pregnant.

Most women respondents say they would stop alcohol use if they were to become pregnant.

Seven in ten women (72%) say they would stop alcohol use if they were to become pregnant. With 20 percent not using alcohol, a total of 92 percent would abstain. Six percent say they would cut back on their alcohol use. Only two percent say they would not change their alcohol use.

In the survey, a total of 54 percent of women say they are currently pregnant (6%) or might become pregnant in the future (48%). Fully 93 percent of women who anticipate pregnancy say they would stop consuming (76%) or currently don't use alcohol (17%). Eightynine percent of women who are now pregnant say they are not consuming alcohol.

There has been an increase since 1999 and 2002 in the number of women who say they would not consume alcohol if they became pregnant (72%, up 10 points from 2002 and 1999).

Women with a university education and those aged 18 to 24 are more likely to say they would stop alcohol use if they were to become pregnant. However, less educated women are more likely to say they don't drink. Women with higher alcohol consumption are somewhat more likely than others to say they would just cut back on their alcohol use.

Quebec women are less likely than women in other provinces, particularly those in Newfoundland, Manitoba and Saskatchewan, to say they would stop alcohol use, and are more likely than others to say they would just cut back on their alcohol use.

#### Women: Alcohol Use During Pregnancy

	DE	DECEMBER 1999			1ARCH 20	02	APRIL 2006		
	Total <b>W</b> омеn	Currently Pregnant	Future Pregnancy	Total Women	Currently PREGNANT	Future Pregnancy	Total Women	Currently PREGNANT	Future Pregnancy
No change	4	7	3	5	8	5	2	2	2
Cut back	11	15	10	9	5	9	6	8	6
Stop	62	46	70	62	50	67	72	68	76
Don't use alcohol now	23	32	18	24	36	20	20	21	17
dk/na	*	_	_	*	-	-	*	_	_
* Less than one percent									

Q.15

If you were to become pregnant {since you became pregnant}, would you {have you} ... not change{d} your alcohol use ... cut back on your alcohol use, or ... stop{ped} alcohol use?

Subsample: Women

# 9.2 Effect of Partner on Alcohol Use during Pregnancy

Women are most likely to say they would lower their alcohol use during their pregnancy if their spouse or partner encouraged them to stop or cut back.

Women are somewhat more likely to say they would lower their alcohol use during their pregnancy if encouraged by their spouse to do so than if their partner or spouse engaged in any of the other behaviours examined. Most say they would not be influenced one way or the other by their partner's continuing to use, or stopping use of, alcohol or by their partner offering them a drink during their pregnancy.

Three in ten women say they would lower their alcohol use during their pregnancy if their spouse or partner encouraged them to stop or cut back their alcohol use during their pregnancy (30%). More than four in ten (43%) say this would not affect their alcohol use.

#### Influence of Partner on Women's Alcohol Use During Pregnancy

	DE	CEMBER ·	1999	N	1ARCH 20	02	APRIL 2006		
	Total Women	Currently PREGNANT	Future Pregnancy	Total <b>W</b> omen	Currently Pregnant	Future Pregnancy	Total Women	Currently PREGNANT	Future Pregnance
If your spouse/partner encouraged									
you to stop or cut down alcohol use									
More likely to drink	7	8	4	17	10	16	14	11	15
Less likely to drink	39	27	45	28	11	31	30	27	34
No difference	39	41	39	40	56	39	43	53	40
Don't drink alcohol	15	24	12	15	23	13	12	9	9
dk/na	*		_	1	_	1	1	_	1
If your spouse/partner continued to drii	nk								
More likely to drink	4	1	4	4	6	2	3	3	4
Less likely to drink	16	11	17	15	_	16	15	9	17
No difference	69	73	69	68	74	71	71	82	72
Don't drink alcohol	12	16	9	12	20	10	10	6	8
dk/na	*	_	_	*		*	*	_	*
lf your spouse/partner offered you alco	hol								
More likely to drink	3	8	3	5	9	5	5	5	5
Less likely to drink	22	7	25	21	10	21	21	13	23
No difference	61	64	62	61	58	63	62	76	64
Don't drink alcohol	14	21	11	13	23	11	11	6	9
dk/na	_	_	-	1	_	1	*	_	*
lf your spouse/partner stopped drinking	7								
More likely to drink	3	_	2	9	6	10	8	4	7
Less likely to drink	28	23	35	25	5	27	27	16	32
No difference	57	56	55	53	73	53	55	70	53
Don't drink alcohol	12	20	9	13	16	10	11	9	8
dk/na	*	1	_	*	_	*	*	_	*
* Less than one percent									
·									

Q.16a-d

Would you be more likely to drink alcohol, less likely to drink alcohol or would it make no difference to your alcohol use in each of the following situations ...?

Subsample: Women

Majorities of women say they would not be influenced one way or the other by other actions on the part of their partners, including their partner continuing to drink during their pregnancy (71% say this would have no effect on their use of alcohol), offering them a drink during their pregnancy (62%), or stopping drinking during their pregnancy (55%). Few women say they would be more likely to drink alcohol if their spouse or partner continued to drink during their pregnancy, stopped drinking during their pregnancy, or were to offer it to them. Fourteen percent say they would be more likely to drink alcohol if their spouse encouraged them to stop or cut back their alcohol use.

These figures have remained essentially unchanged since 2002.

Women aged 18 to 24 are more likely to reduce their alcohol use as a result of all of these behaviours on the part of their spouse or partner.

New Brunswick women are more likely than others to reduce their alcohol use as a result of all these behaviours on the part of their spouse or partner.

Aboriginal women are more likely than non-Aboriginal women to reduce their alcohol use if their spouse continued to drink during their pregnancy or were to offer alcohol to them during their pregnancy.

# 10.0 Women and Advice from Doctors

One-half of women say their doctor has given them no advice regarding alcohol consumption during pregnancy. Among those who have received advice on this topic, the most common is that they should not drink alcohol at all.

Fully one-half of women (50%) report not receiving any advice from their doctor regarding alcohol consumption during pregnancy, including 38 percent of women who are currently pregnant who say they have received no advice. Of those who have received advice from their doctor, the most common piece of advice is that they should not drink alcohol at all.

When women are asked what advice, if any, their doctor has given them regarding alcohol consumption during pregnancy, they are most likely to mention that their doctor has told them that they should not drink alcohol at all (30%). Far smaller proportions mention reducing consumption or drink in moderation (8%), it can harm the baby or it's not good for the baby (4%), glass of wine is okay (2%), gave them pamphlets (2%) or informed them of the effects of alcohol on fetus or FAS (1%). Two percent mention other advice and seven percent offer no opinion.

Among pregnant women, 44 percent say their doctor has couselled abstaining and ten percent say reduced consumption.

Less affluent women, those aged 18 to 24, and those with higher alcohol consumption are more likely to report that they did not receive advice from their doctor regarding alcohol consumption during pregnancy. Women aged 25 and older, those who are mothers and those living in smaller communities are more likely to

say they have received advice from their doctor on this topic, and are also more likely to mention that their doctor told them that they should not drink alcohol at all. Those aged 25 and older, and those who are mothers are also more likely to mention that their doctor told them to reduce consumption or drink in moderation.

Newfoundland women are more likely than those in other provinces to say they did not receive any advice from their doctor on alcohol consumption during pregnancy. Women in Manitoba and Alberta are more likely to say they have received advice from their doctor on this topic, and are more likely to mention that their doctor told them that they should not drink alcohol at all.

#### Women: Advice from Doctors

Not drink alcohol at all/don't drink	30
Reduce consumption/moderation	8
It can harm the baby/not good for the baby	4
Glass of wine is okay	2
Gave me pamphlets	2
Informed me of the effects of alcohol	
on fetus/FAS	1
Other	2
None	50
dk/na	7

Q.17

What advice, if any, has your doctor given you regarding alcohol consumption during pregnancy?

Subsample: Women

# 11.0 Men and their Partners

Almost nine in ten men say they would be very likely to encourage their pregnant spouse to stop or cut back on her alcohol use during the pregnancy. More than four in ten would be very likely to stop drinking alcohol themselves during their partner's pregnancy.

As we saw previously, three in ten women would be influenced by a spouse who encourages them to reduce alcohol consumption during pregnancy. Here, we see that many men are willing to take on that role.

# Men: Alcohol Use During Spouse's Pregnancy

	DECEMBER 1999		MAR	MARCH 2002		MARCH 2006	
	Total Men	Spouse May Become Pregnant	Total Men	Spouse May Become Pregnant	Total Men	Spouse May Becom Pregnant	
Encourage her to stop/cut back							
on alcohol use							
Very likely	71	70	86	88	87	88	
Somewhat likely	8	7	7	7	4	4	
Not very likely	4	6	1	1	1	*	
Not at all likely	4	3	5	4	6	5	
Spouse does not drink now**	14	15	na	na	na	na	
dk/na	*	0	2	1	2	2	
Stop drinking alcohol yourself							
luring her pregnancy							
Very likely	30	33	47	53	43	44	
Somewhat likely	22	19	23	18	22	25	
Not very likely	23	26	14	17	18	17	
Not at all likely	14	15	14	11	16	13	
Do not drink now**	11	6	na	na	na	na	
dk/na	1	1	2	1	1	1	

#### Q.20a-b

If your spouse or partner were to become {or is} pregnant, would you be very, somewhat, not very or not at all likely to do each of the following ...?

Subsample: Men

<sup>\*\*</sup> This response category was not available in the 2002 survey

Almost nine in ten men (87%) say they would be very likely to encourage their pregnant spouse or partner to stop or cut back on her alcohol use during the pregnancy. Fewer men (43%) say they would be very likely to stop drinking alcohol themselves during their spouse's or partner's pregnancy; a total of 34 percent say they would not be likely to stop.

The numbers of men very likely to encourage their spouse, and to stop consuming alcohol themselves, are higher today than in 1999.

A total of only seven percent of men say they would not be likely to encourage their spouse to stop or cut back on alcohol use.

The most affluent men and those with higher alcohol consumption are less likely than others to say they would be very likely to stop drinking themselves during their spouse's or partner's pregnancy.

# 12.0 Awareness of Levels of Alcohol Consumption

Respondents assess light drinking for an average woman as 1.5 drinks, on average, over the course of an evening, moderate drinking as 2.8 drinks, heavy drinking as 6.0 drinks, and binge drinking as 6.8 drinks.

Respondents were asked to assess how many alcoholic drinks, over the course of an evening, they would consider to be light, moderate, heavy or binge drinking for an average woman.

On average, respondents' assessments of the number of drinks the average woman would have to consume over the course of an evening to reach various levels of drinking are as follows: light drinking (1.5 drinks), moderate drinking (2.8 drinks), heavy drinking (6.0 drinks) and binge drinking (6.8 drinks) – these are mean scores. <sup>1</sup>

In fact, "binge drinking" is considered by experts to be approximately four or more drinks in four hours, for the average woman.

The average estimates given by men for all levels of drinking are slightly higher than the estimates given by women. The average figures for all levels of drinking are higher among women aged 18 to 24 and those who are not mothers. The average estimates for moderate, heavy and binge drinking are higher among women born in Canada.

The average estimates for all levels of drinking are lowest among Quebec women, and also lower among women in Ontario and British Columbia.

<sup>1</sup> Respondents answering 15 drinks or more were assigned a value of 15.

# Recall of Information about the Effects of Alcohol Use

		HT DRINK	ING	MODE	RATE DRI	NKING	HEA	VY DRINK	anG	BIN	GE DRINK	ING
Number	TOTAL	$W_{\text{OMEN}} \\$	Men	TOTAL	Women	Men	TOTAL	$W_{\text{OMEN}} \\$	Men	TOTAL	$W_{\text{OMEN}} \\$	MEN
1 or fewer	59	62	50	13	13	10	2	2	2	2	2	2
2	31	29	37	34	34	33	3	3	4	3	3	5
3	6	5	9	31	32	30	12	12	11	7	7	4
4	1	1	2	12	11	15	17	18	14	11	11	12
5	1	*	1	5	4	6	19	19	17	15	16	12
6	*	*	*	2	2	2	16	15	19	15	15	15
7	*	*	*	1	1	1	5	5	5	7	7	8
8	*	*	_	*	*	*	8	7	10	10	10	10
9	_	_	_	*	*	*	1	1	2	1	1	2
10	_	_	_	*	*	*	8	8	8	12	12	12
11	_	_	_	*	*	_	1	1	1	*	*	*
12	_	_	_	*	*	_	3	3	3	6	5	9
13	_	_	_	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*
14	_	_	_	_	_	_	*	*	*	1	*	1
15 or more	_	_	_	*	*	_	3	3	4	4	4	4
Mean	1.5	1.5	1.7	2.8	2.7	2.9	6.0	5.9	6.2	6.8	6.7	7.0

<sup>\*</sup> Less than one percent

#### Q.21

In your opinion, thinking about an average woman/still thinking about an average woman, ... How many alcohol drinks, over the course of an evening, do you consider to be binge drinking ... How many alcohol drinks, over the course of an evening, do you consider to be light drinking ... How many alcohol drinks, over the course of an evening, do you consider to be heavy drinking ... How many alcohol drinks, over the course of an evening, do you consider to be moderate drinking?

# 13.0 Conclusions and Recommendations

The survey findings suggest a number of different directions for communications initiatives, both in terms of content and in terms of vehicles, to be used in a communications or public information campaign.

In terms of content issues, the survey indicates that although there has been no change since 1999 in women's unaided awareness (and a slight decline in aided awareness since 2002) of cutting down or stopping alcohol as a very important behaviour that pregnant women can do to increase the likelihood of having a healthy baby, it is (along with cutting down or stopping smoking) still seen as one of the most important actions to be taken. However, the survey indicates that women in lower socio-economic groups and those who live in rural areas are less aware of the importance of this behaviour. Hence, information directed at these women should be part of any communications initiative.

On the topic of the effects of alcohol consumption during pregnancy, the survey indicates that there continues to be widespread awareness that alcohol use during pregnancy is harmful to an infant, that the more alcohol is consumed, the more likely and extensive the harm may be, and that the effects of alcohol use on a child do not disappear as a child grows older. There have also been increases since 1999 and 2002 in awareness of the impact of small amounts of alcohol use, and an increase since 2002 on the effect of alcohol on the development of the fetus. However, there continue to be significant proportions (one-third or more of the target groups examined) who lack awareness of these latter two issues. Communication initiatives about alcohol use should address this lack of knowledge or confusion.

On the topic of sources of information and appropriate media for communications initiatives, the survey continues to confirm the importance of health professionals and health settings, particularly doctor's offices, as the place where information about the effects of alcohol use is sought. The survey also shows that television remains a powerful medium for increasing awareness and knowledge on the effects of alcohol use during pregnancy, and suggests that advertising on radio and in the print media, as well as on buses, bus shelters and subways, would also be effective ways of raising awareness about this issue. Moreover, women are more likely than men to think all the initiatives would be a very effective way of reaching them on the subjects of the risks of alcohol use.

The survey also finds overwhelming support for a number of initiatives to provide information about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy, with the strongest support for government-sponsored advertising and requiring warning messages on alcohol advertising, and less so for requiring labels on alcohol products, and signs in bars and clubs and restaurants. Once again, women are more likely than men to be very supportive of all the initiatives to provide information about the risks of alcohol use.

The survey suggests that there may be a need for communications initiatives directed at physicians to stress the importance of relaying information to women about the effects of alcohol consumption during pregnancy. One-half of women (including over four in ten women who are currently pregnant) report not receiving this information from their physician. This is especially the case for women who are less affluent, younger and who consume higher levels of alcohol, and those living in Newfoundland.

Increasing awareness of these issues in Quebec should continue to be an important goal of any communications campaign. Although awareness of FAS in Quebec has increased dramatically since both 1999 and 2002, awareness still trails that found in other provinces. Quebecers are also less likely to be aware of alcoholrelated birth defects. Also, they are less likely to be

aware of the impact of small and moderate amounts of alcohol, are less likely to say the effect of alcohol on the fetus is clear and are more likely to believe that most of the effects of alcohol use on a child usually disappear as a child grows older. There continues to be a need to distribute more information and create more discussion about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy within Quebec.

The following table summarizes the target groups where the need for information about the effects of alcohol use and FAS/FASD is higher than average based on the survey findings, along with appropriate settings and vehicles of communications for each, listed in rank order of effectiveness for each group.

TARGET GROUPS TARGET GROUPS

NEED FOR INFORMATION COMMUNICATIONS SETTINGS AND VEHICLES

QUEBEC WOMEN Sending informational material to health care professionals

Television ads

Posters in waiting rooms and clinics

Posters or brochures in pharmacies or drug stores Inserts and advertising in magazines or newspapers

Ads on buses, subways or in bus shelters Pamphlets, brochures or other publications

Radio ads Website

Women with lower

LEVELS OF EDUCATION Sending informational material to health care professionals

Posters in waiting rooms and clinics

Television ads

Posters or brochures in pharmacies or drug stores Inserts and advertising in magazines or newspapers

Ads on buses, subways or in bus shelters Pamphlets, brochures or other publications

Radio ads Website

Men Television ads

Sending informational material to health care professionals

Posters in waiting rooms and clinics

Radio ads

Posters or brochures in pharmacies or drug stores

Ads on buses, subways or in bus shelters

Inserts and advertising in magazines or newspapers

Website

Pamphlets, brochures or other publications



# Survey Methods

The results of the survey are based on questions asked to 3,633 respondents, either women aged 18 to 40 years (2,724 respondents) or men who are partners of women aged 18 to 40 years (909 respondents), living within the 10 provinces of Canada. The survey was conducted by telephone from March 21 to April 21, 2006.

#### Sample selection

The sample for this survey was derived in two ways: sample derived from a return-to-sample design yielded 2,000 interviews; random sampling directly from the general population, based on Random Digit Dialling (RDD), yielded the remaining 1,633 interviews.

The return-to-sample design involved using previous Environics survey research to identify and call households from the general population across the country that included women between the ages of 18 to 40 years of age.

The original samples, which were used as the base for the return-to-sample design of the current research, were initially generated by RDD sampling, as was the random sampling from the general population which was also used in the current research.

Environics uses a sampling method in which sample is generated using the RDD (random digit dialling) technique. Samples are generated using a database of active phone ranges. These ranges are made up of a series of contiguous blocks of 100 contiguous phone numbers and are revised three to four times per year after a thorough analysis of the most recent edition of an electronic phonebook. Each number generated is processed through an appropriate series of validation procedures before it is retained as part of a sample. Each number generated is looked up in a recent electronic phonebook database to retrieve geographic location, business indicator and "do not call" status. The postal code for listed numbers is verified for accuracy and compared against a list of valid codes for the sample stratum. Non-listed numbers are assigned a "most probable" postal code based on the data available for all listed numbers in the phone exchange. This sample selection technique ensures that both unlisted numbers and numbers listed after the directory publication are included in the sample.

The sample frame utilized gender and provincial quotas to allocate interviews. The provincial quotas were designed to ensure a robust sample in each province for purposes of analysis; the final results were then weighted to reflect the actual proportions in the population in each province. The final sample was also weighted by gender (75%/25% female/male). The sample of women was weighted by age based on 2001 Census data to reflect the actual proportion of women in the four age groups in the general population (18-24 years -28%, 25-29 years -19%, 30-34 years -22%, 35 and over -31%). The sample of men was not weighted by age.

The final sample is distributed as follows.

	Quota	WEIGHTED N	Unweighted N	Margin of Error
Women	2,700	2,724	2,724	1.9
Men	900	909	909	3.3
Newfoundland	360	62	360	5.2
Nova Scotia	360	110	360	5.2
New Brunswick	360	88	360	5.2
Prince Edward Island	360	28	360	5.2
Quebec	360	876	360	5.2
Ontario	360	1,384	393	4.9
Manitoba	360	134	360	5.2
Saskatchewan	360	117	360	5.2
Alberta	360	360	360	5.2
British Columbia	360	474	360	5.2
Total	3,600	3,633	3,633	1.6

During fieldwork, a total of 31,027 telephone numbers were drawn from the available samples.

Screening questions were asked to identify qualified respondents within all households. Females between the ages of 18 and 40 years, or husbands or male partners of a female between the ages of 18 and 40 years, were eligible. In households where there were two or more eligible persons, the survey respondent was selected randomly in accord with the gender quotas.

# Telephone interviewing

Fieldwork was conducted at Environics' central facilities in Toronto and Montreal. Field supervisors were present at all times to ensure accurate interviewing and recording of responses. Prior to the beginning of fieldwork, Environics conducted 20 pre-test interviews to ensure that the interview questions were clear, appro-

priately sequenced within the interview protocol and yield useful information. During fieldwork, 10 percent of each interviewer's work was unobtrusively monitored for quality control in accordance with the standards set out by the Marketing Research and Intelligence Association – MRIA (formerly the Canadian Association of Marketing Research Organizations – CAMRO). A minimum of five calls were made to a household before classifying it as a "no answer."

# Completion results

The sample for this survey consisted of 3,633 interviews. The margin of error for a sample of 3,633 is  $\pm$  1.6 percentage points, 19 times in 20. The margin of error is greater for results pertaining to regional or socio-demographic subgroups of the total sample.

The calculated incidence is 43.4%. The calculated response rate is 31.7%.

	N
A. Total sample dialled	31,027
Hayaahald aat aliaibla	4 707
Household not eligible	4,737
Non-residential/not in service	4,633
Language barrier	309
B. Subtotal	9,679
C. New base (A – B)	21,348
D. No answer/line busy/not available	11,210
Refusals	6,401
Mid-interview refusals	104
E. Subtotal	17,715
F. Net completions $(C - E)$	3,633



March 2, 2006

# **FASD Questionnaire**

#### PN5877

Hello, my name is I am calling from Environics Research Group We are conducting a survey on behalf of the Government of Canada. Your participation is important to us and your answers will be helpful in the creation of informational materials to help families. All individual answers to this survey will be kept strictly confidential.							
I need to ask only two questions to determine if your household is eligible to participate.							
Is anyone in your household? <b>READ</b>							
A) a female aged 18 to 40?							
$\begin{array}{c} 1-\mathrm{Yes} \\ 2-\mathrm{No} \end{array}$							
B) a husband or male partner of a female aged 18 to 40?							
$\begin{array}{l} 1-Yes\\ 2-No \end{array}$							

**IF NO TO BOTH, POLITELY TERMINATE:** We are looking for people in these categories and there are none in your household. This closes the interview and I thank you for your time.

IF YES TO A <u>OR</u> B, ASK TO SPEAK TO THAT PERSON AND CONTINUE. IF YES TO BOTH, RANDOMIZE AND CHOOSE ONE AND CONTINUE OR SCHEDULE CALL-BACK. WHEN RESPONDENT ON THE LINE VERIFY AGE AND GENDER STATUS FROM A OR B

**REPEAT IF NECESSARY:** We are conducting a survey on behalf of the Public Health Agency of Canada. Your participation is very important to us and your answers will be helpful in the creation of informational materials to help families. All individual answers to this survey will be kept strictly confidential.

**ONLY IF ASKED:** This survey will take no longer than 20 minutes.

- 1. Thinking about healthy infants and children, what, in your opinion are the most important things that pregnant women can do to increase the likelihood that their baby will be born healthy? What things come to mind as important? **DO NOT READ. CODE ALL THAT APPLY. FIRST MENTION, SECOND MENTION, THIRD MENTION.** Are there any others?
  - 01 Visit doctor/health professional
  - 02 Eat well/good nutrition/vitamins
  - 03 Increase exercise/physical activity
  - 04 Reduce exercise/physical activity
  - 05 Cut down/stop smoking
  - 06 Cut down/stop alcohol use
  - 07 Cut down/stop drug use (marijuana, crack, heroin, etc.)
  - 08 Avoid stress
  - 09 Avoid environmental pollution
  - 10 Avoid second hand smoke
  - 11 Positive mental attitude
  - 12 Learn about infant care
  - 13 Take pre-natal class
  - 14 Talk to friends/family/social support
  - 15 Get rest/sleep
  - 16 Other (**SPECIFY**)
  - 17 DK/NA
- 2. Here are some things that pregnant women might do to increase the likelihood that their baby will be born healthy. In your opinion, is each of the following: one of the <u>most</u> important things to do, a very important thing to do, a less important thing to do or not at all important to do?

### READ AND ROTATE

- a) Cut down or stop smoking?
  - 1 One of the most important things to do
  - 2 A very important thing to do
  - 3 A less important thing to do
  - 4 Not at all important to do
  - 5 DK/NA
- b) Cut down or stop using alcohol
- c) Avoid stressful situations
- d) Eat nutritious food
- e) Visit a doctor or health professional on a regular basis
- f) Reduce strenuous physical activity
- g) Avoid environmental pollution
- h) Avoid second-hand smoke
- 3. Are each of the following statements true or not true?

# READ AND ROTATE. STATEMENTS b AND c MUST NOT BE ADJACENT

- a) A <u>small</u> amount of alcohol use during pregnancy can <u>usually</u> be considered safe.
  - 1 True
  - 2 Not true
  - 3 DK/NA
- b) The more alcohol a pregnant woman drinks, the more likely that the baby will be harmed.
- c) The more alcohol a pregnant woman drinks, the more harm that may be done to the baby.
- d) A <u>moderate</u> amount of alcohol consumption during pregnancy can <u>usually</u> be considered safe.
- e) Any alcohol consumption during pregnancy can harm the baby.
- f) Alcohol use <u>before</u> a pregnancy begins can harm a baby, <u>even</u> if a woman stops alcohol use <u>during</u> the pregnancy.
- g) A small amount of alcohol consumption during pregnancy would never lead to serious harm to the baby.
- 4. And are each of the following statements true or not true:

#### **READ**

- a) The effect of alcohol use on the development of an unborn fetus is unclear.
  - 1 True
  - 2 Not true
  - 3 DK/NA
- b) Alcohol use during pregnancy can lead to life-long disabilities in a child.
- c) Most of the effects of alcohol use on a child usually disappear as the child grows older.
- 5. In terms of its effect on a baby that is born, do you think it would be very safe, somewhat safe, not very safe or not at all safe for a pregnant woman to drink each of the following amounts of alcohol?

#### **READ AND ROTATE**

- a) One alcoholic drink each day during the pregnancy?
  - 1 Very safe
  - 2 Somewhat safe
  - 3 Not very safe
  - 4 Not at all safe
  - 5 DK/NA

	b)	Three or four alcoholic drinks each weekend during the pregnancy?					
	c)	Two alcoholic drinks on two or three different occasions during the pregnancy?					
	d)	A total of one or two alcoholic drinks during the pregnancy?					
R	)TA	ATE Q.6 and Q.7					
6.	a)	Have you ever heard of <u>fetal alcohol syndrome</u> or <u>fetal alcohol spectrum disorder</u> ?					
		1 – Yes <b>ASK (b)</b> 2 – No 3 – DK/NA					
	b)	Can you tell me what fetal alcohol syndrome or fetal alcohol spectrum disorder is? <b>PROBE FOR COMPLETE RESPONSE.</b> What happens with fetal alcohol syndrome or fetal alcohol spectrum disorder?					
7.	a)	Have you ever heard of alcohol-related birth defects?					
		1 – Yes <b>ASK (b)</b> 2 – No 3 – DK/NA					
	b)	Can you tell me what alcohol-related birth defects are? <b>PROBE</b>					
AS	SK A	ALL					
8.	Do	you recall seeing any information about the effects of alcohol use on a baby during pregnancy?					

1 – Yes 2 – No 3 – DK/NA

9.	a)	syndrome, fet	al alcohol specus? This would	trum disorder,		ng pregnancy, fetal alcoho irth defects over the past ds, posters, radio,
			2 - No	ASK (b) TO GO TO Q.10 GO TO Q.10		
	IF	YES, ASK:				
	b) ]	Please tell me	everything you	can remember	about this ad (these	ads)
			2 - DK/NA			
	c)	•		d this advertisin LL THAT AP	C	
			<ul><li>2 - Provincial</li><li>3 - Other gove</li><li>4 - Health org</li><li>5 - Alcohol m</li><li>6 - Provincial</li></ul>	ernment/munic ganization/NGC aanufacturer/bed liquor board/ag	ipal government  or company	
d)	(the	nere did you no em) anywhere DDE ALL TH	else?	) advertisemen	t(s)? <b>DO NOT RE</b> A	<b>AD</b> Did you notice it
		DE REE III			First Mention	Other Mentions
		02 - R 03 - N 04 - M 05 - R 06 - P 07 - P 08 - P 09 - Ir 10 - D	fewspapers Iagazines eastaurant/bar amphlet/brochu oster ublic transit nternet/web site octor/hospital o	e banner ad clinic store (NEW)		
		11- Ot	_			

#### **ASK ALL**

- 10. Do you strongly approve, somewhat approve, somewhat disapprove or strongly disapprove of each of the following: **READ AND ROTATE** 
  - a) Requiring labels on alcohol products warning about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy.
    - 1 Strongly approve
    - 2 Somewhat approve
    - 3 Somewhat disapprove
    - 4 Strongly disapprove
    - 5 DK/NA
  - b) Requiring signs in restaurants warning about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy.
    - 1 Strongly approve
    - 2 Somewhat approve
    - 3 Somewhat disapprove
    - 4 Strongly disapprove
    - 5 DK/NA
  - c) Requiring signs in bars and clubs warning about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy.
    - 1 Strongly approve
    - 2 Somewhat approve
    - 3 Somewhat disapprove
    - 4 Strongly disapprove
    - 5 DK/NA
  - d) Government-sponsored advertising describing the effects and warning about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy.
    - 1 Strongly approve
    - 2 Somewhat approve
    - 3 Somewhat disapprove
    - 4 Strongly disapprove
    - 5 DK/NA
  - e) Requiring messages on alcohol advertising that would warn about the risks of alcohol use during pregnancy.
    - 1 Strongly approve
    - 2 Somewhat approve
    - 3 Somewhat disapprove
    - 4 Strongly disapprove
    - 5 DK/NA
- 11. What, for you, would be the best source of information about the effects of alcohol use during pregnancy? **DO NOT READ. CODE ONE ONLY**

- 01 Doctor/doctor's office
- 02 Health clinic/hospital
- 03 Pre-natal class
- 04 Pharmacy/drug store
- 05 Workplace
- 06 Through friends/family
- 07 Books/magazines
- 08 Internet sources
- 09 TV/other media
- 10 Others (SPECIFY)
- 11 DK/NA
- 12. The Government of Canada is considering some initiatives to inform and raise awareness about the effects of alcohol use during pregnancy. Would each of the following be a very, somewhat, or not very effective way to reach you on this subject

#### READ AND ROTATE

- a) A website.
  - 1 Very effective
  - 2 Somewhat effective
  - 3 Not very effective
  - 4 DK/NA
- b) Sending informational materials to doctors and health care professionals so they can inform their patients.
- c) Posters in waiting rooms and clinics.
- d) Inserts and advertising in magazines or newspapers.
- e) Ads on buses, subways or in bus shelters.
- f) Pamphlets, brochures or other publications.
- g) Posters or brochures in pharmacies or drug stores.
- h) Television ads
- i) Radio ads

# WOMEN ONLY – OTHERS GO TO Q18

13. a) Have you ever given birth to a child?

	1 - Yes	ASK (b)
	2 - No	
	3 – DK/NA	
b) Did you giv	e birth to a child v	within the past five years?
	1 - Yes	
	2 - No	
	3 – DK/NA	
14. a) Are you cur	rently pregnant or	wishing to become pregnant within the next two years?
	1 – Yes, currer	ntly pregnant
	2 – Yes, may b	pecome pregnant
	3 - No	ASK (b)
	4 – DK/NA	ASK (b)
b) Do you thin	k or wish you mig	ght become pregnant at some point in the future?
	1 – Yes	
	2 - No	
	3 – DK/NA	
15. If you <u>were</u> to b [IF PREGNAN		would you me pregnant, have you]
	1 – not change	your alcohol use
	2 – cut back or	n your alcohol use, or
	3 – stop alcoho	ol use
VOI	LUNTEERED	
	4 – don't use a	lcohol now
	5 – DK/NA	
•	our alcohol use in o	k alcohol, less likely to drink alcohol or would it make no each of the following situations:
a) If your spou	ise or partner cont	inued to drink alcohol during your pregnancy?
	1 – More likely	y
	2 – Less likely	
	3 – No differer	

**VOLUNTEERED** 

- 4 Don't drink alcohol
- 5 DK/NA
- b) If your spouse or partner encouraged you to stop or cut back your alcohol use during your pregnancy?
- c) If your spouse or partner were to offer you alcohol during your pregnancy?
- d) If your spouse or partner stopped drinking alcohol during your pregnancy?
- 17. What advice, if any, has your doctor given you regarding alcohol consumption during pregnancy? (OPEN-ENDED)
  - 1 Reponse
  - 2 Doctor did not give any advice about alcohol
  - 3 DK/NA

# MEN ONLY. OTHERS GO TO Q21.

18. a) Do you have any children?

1 - Yes **ASK** (b)

2 - No

3 - DK/NA

b) Do you have any children aged 5 or younger?

1 - Yes

2 - No

3 - DK/NA

- 19. a) Do you currently have a spouse or partner who is pregnant, or whom you think might become pregnant within the next two years?
  - 1 Yes, spouse is currently pregnant
  - 2 Think might become pregnant in next two years
  - 3 No ASK (b)
  - b) Do you think your spouse or partner might become pregnant at some point in the future?

1 - Yes

2 - No

3 - DK/NA

20. If your spouse or partner were to become pregnant (or is pregnant), would you be very, somewhat, not very or not at all likely to do each of the following?

# **READ AND ROTATE**

a) Encourage her to stop of cut back on her alcohol use during the pregnancy?
<ul> <li>1 - Very likely</li> <li>2 - Somewhat likely</li> <li>3 - Not very likely</li> <li>4 - Not at all likely</li> <li>5 - DK/NA</li> </ul>
b) Stop drinking alcohol yourself during her pregnancy?
ASK ALL
21. In your opinion, thinking about an <u>average woman</u> ,/still thinking about <u>an average woman</u> <b>READ AND ROTATE a to d</b>
<b>NOTE TO INTERVIEWER:</b> A DRINK IS ONE GLASS OF WINE, ONE WINE COOLER, ONE CAN OR BOTTLE OF BEER, ONE SHOT OF LIQUOR, OR ONE MIXED COCKTAIL
a) how many alcohol drinks, over the course of an evening, do you consider to be binge drinking?  01 - 1 or fewer 02 - 2 03 - 3 04 - 4 05 - 5 06 - 6 07 - 7 08 - 8 09 - 9 10 - 10 11 - 11 12 - 12 13 - 13 14 - 14 15 - 15 or more 16 - Never heard of binge drinking (VOLUNTEERED) 17 - DK/NA  b) how many alcohol drinks, over the course of an evening, do you consider to be light

drinking?

c) how many alcohol drinks, over the course of an evening, do you consider to be <u>heavy</u>

drinking?

d) how many alcohol drinks, over the course of an evening, do you consider to be <u>moderate</u> drinking?

# **DEMOGRAPHICS**

#### ASK ALL

22. Finally, a few questions for statistical purposes. Please be assured that all your responses will be kept entirely anonymous and absolutely confidential. In what year were you born?

- **1 SPECIFY** \_\_\_\_\_\_
- 23. What is the highest level of education that you have reached?

# DO NOT READ - CIRCLE ONE ONLY

- 01 Some elementary (Grades 1-7)
- 02 Completed elementary (Grade 8)
- 03 Some high school (Grades 9-11)
- 04 Completed high school (Grades 12 or 13)
- 05 Some community college, vocational, trade school, CEGEP
- 06 Diploma or certificate from community college, vocational, trade school, CEGEP
- 07 Some university
- 08 Completed university (Bachelor's degree)
- 09 Post graduate/professional school (Master's degree, Ph.D., LI.B,
- M.D. M.Ed, etc.)
- 10 No schooling

### VOLUNTEERED

- 11 Refuse/DK/NA
- 24. Which of the following best corresponds to your present situation? Are you:
  - 1 Employed full-time
  - 2 Employed part-time
  - 3 Unemployed
  - 4 A home-maker
  - 5 Retired
  - 6 A student
  - 7 Other
- 25. In addition to being Canadian, to which ethnic or cultural group do you or your ancestors belong?

# DO NOT READ. DO NOT PROBE. CODE TWO MAXIMUM.

- 01 British (English, Welsh, Scottish, Irish)
- 02 French
- 03 Other European (German, Ukrainian, Polish, Dutch, Italian, Portuguese, Greek, Spanish, Russian, etc.)

	<ul> <li>04 – Jewish</li> <li>05 – Chinese</li> <li>06 – South Asian (ex. East Indian, Pakistani, Punjabi, Sri Lankan)</li> <li>07 – Black (ex. African, Haitian, Jamaican, Somali, American Black)</li> <li>08 – Aboriginal (First Nations, Indian, Métis, Inuit)</li> <li>09 – Southeast Asian (Cambodian, Indonesian, Laotian, Vietnamese, Filipino)</li> <li>10 – South American (Chilean, Brazilian, Argentinian, etc.)</li> <li>11 – Hispanic (Mexican, Central American, Cuban, etc.)</li> <li>12 – East Asian</li> <li>13 – Other (SPECIFY)</li> <li>14 – DK/NA</li> </ul>
26. Were you born in	n Canada or in another country?
27. Are you Aborigi	1 – Canada 2 – Another country 3 – DK/NA nal, Métis, First Nations or Inuit?
	1 - Yes 2 - No
	3 - DK/NA
28. a) Are you curre	ently:
	1 – Married or living as a couple 2 – Widowed 3 – Separated 4 – Divorced, or 5 – Single 6 – DK/NA/Refuse
b) How long ha <b>DO NOT RI</b>	ve you been married or living with your partner?
	1 – Less than one year 2 – 1 to less than 2 years 3 – 2 to less than 3 years 4 – 3 to less than 4 years 5 – 4 to less than 5 years 6 – 5 to less than 10 years 7 – 10 to less than 15 year 8 – over 15 years 9 – DK/NA

- 29. Into which of the following categories would you put the total annual income in 2005 of all the members of your household, including yourself, before taxes and deductions?
  - 01 Under \$10,000
  - 02 \$10,001 to \$20,000
  - 03 \$20,001 to \$30,000
  - 04 \$30,001 to \$40,000
  - 05 \$40,001 to \$50,000
  - 06 \$50,001 to \$60,000
  - 07 \$60,001 to \$70,000
  - 08 \$70,001 to \$80,000
  - 09 \$80,001 to \$90,000
  - 10 \$90,001 to \$100,000
  - 11 \$100,000 and over
  - 12 DK/NA /Refused
- 30. Thinking about the last month, how many alcoholic drinks did you have during an average week? (**Note to interviewer:** a drink is a glass of wine, one wine cooler, one can or bottle of beer, one shot of liquor, or one mixed cocktail)? **DO NOT READ** 
  - 1 No drinks during an average week
  - 2 Less than one drink during an average week
  - 3 1 to 3 drinks a week
  - 4 4 to 6 drinks a week
  - 5 7 to 10 drinks a week
  - 6 11 to 14 drinks a week
  - 7 15 to 17 drinks a week
  - 8 18 or more drinks a week
  - 9 [DO NOT READ] Never drink alcohol (NEW)
  - 10 DK/NA
- 31. Finally, thinking about the last <u>six</u> months, on how many occasions how many times did you consume [Women: 4 or more drinks in 4 hours, Men: 5 or more drinks in 4 hours]?

#### DO NOT READ

- 1 No times
- 2 One time
- 3 Two times
- 4 Three times
- 5 Four or more times
- 6 DK/NA

**Note to interviewer:** If respondent asks for more information on the topic, read:

If you would like to receive information about alcohol and pregnancy, please call the Canadian Centre on Substance Abuse at 1-800-559-4514.



Le mars 2, 2006

# **FASD Questionnaire Français**

#### PN5877

Bonjour/Bonsoir. Je m'appelle	du Gouvernement du Canada. Nous vos réponses seront utiles pour créer
J'ai besoin de vous poser seulement deux questions pour conditions requises pour participer.	déterminer si votre foyer remplit les
Est-ce qu'il y a dans votre foyerLIRE	
A) une femme âgée de 18 à 40 ans?	
1 - Oui 2 - Non	
B) le mari ou le conjoint de cette femme qui a entre 18	et 40 ans?
1 - Oui 2 - Non	

SI NON DANS LES DEUX CAS, REMERCIER ET TERMINER. Nous recherchons des personnes qui appartiennent à ces catégories et il n'y en a pas dans votre famille. Ceci conclut l'interview. Merci.

SI OUI À A OU B, DEMANDER À PARLER À CETTE PERSONNE ET CONTINUER. SI OUI AUX DEUX, RANDOMISER ET CHOISIR UNE PERSONNE ET CONTINUER OU FIXER UNE DATE/HEURE DE RAPPEL. QUAND VOUS AUREZ LE RÉPONDANT À L'APPAREIL, VÉRIFIER L'ÂGE ET LE SEXE DE A OU B

**RÉPÉTEZ LE CAS ÉCHÉANT :** Nous effectuons un sondage au nom du Gouvernement du Canada. Nous accordons beaucoup d'importance à votre participation et vos réponses seront utiles pour créer du matériel informatif qui servira à aider les familles. Toutes les réponses individuelles à ce sondage demeureront strictement confidentielles.

# **SEULEMENT SI ON VOUS LE DEMANDE :** Ce sondage ne prendra pas plus de 20 minutes.

- 1. Si on pense à la santé des bébés et des enfants, quelles sont d'après vous les choses les plus importantes que les femmes enceintes peuvent faire pour augmenter les chances que leur bébé naisse en bonne santé? Qu'est-ce qui vous semble important? NE PAS LIRE. CODER TOUTES LES MENTIONS QUI S'APPLIQUENT. PREMIÈRE MENTION, DEUXIÈME MENTION, TROISIÈME MENTION. Est-ce qu'il y a autre chose?
  - 01 Aller voir un médecin/un professionnel de la santé
  - 02 Bien manger/bonne nutrition/vitamines
  - 03 Faire plus d'exercice/de l'activité physique
  - 04 Faire moins d'exercice/moins d'activité physique
  - 05 Fumer moins/cesser de fumer
  - 06 Consommer moins d'alcool/arrêter de consommer de l'alcool
  - 07 Consommer moins de drogues/cesser de consommer des drogues (marijuana, crack, héroïne, etc.)
  - 08 Éviter le stress
  - 09 Éviter la pollution de l'environnement
  - 10 Éviter la fumée des autres
  - 11 Avoir une attitude mentale positive
  - 12 Se renseigner sur les soins à donner aux enfants
  - 13 Suivre des cours prénataux
  - 14 Parler à des amis/à des parents/le support social
  - 15 Se reposer/dormir
  - 16 Autre (**PRÉCISER**)
  - 17 NSP/PR
- 2. Voici certaines choses que les femmes enceintes peuvent faire pour augmenter les chances que leur bébé naisse en bonne santé. À votre avis, est-ce que chacune des choses suivantes est : l'une des <u>plus importantes</u> à faire, une chose très importante à faire, une chose moins importante à faire ou une chose pas du tout importante à faire?

# LIRE EN ROTATION

- a) Fumer moins ou cesser de fumer?
  - 1 Une des choses les plus importantes
  - 2 Une chose très importante
  - 3 Une chose moins importante
  - 4 Une chose pas du tout importante
  - 5 NSP/PR
- b) Consommer moins d'alcool ou cesser de consommer de l'alcool
- c) Éviter les situations de stress
- d) Manger des aliments nutritifs
- e) Aller voir régulièrement un médecin ou un professionnel de la santé
- f) Réduire l'activité physique intense

- g) Éviter la pollution de l'environnement
- h) Éviter la fumée des autres
- 3. Est-ce que les énoncés suivants sont vrais ou faux? **LIRE EN ROTATION**. LES ÉNONCÉS b ET c NE DOIVENT PAS ÊTRE ADJACENTS
  - a) On peut généralement considérer comme sécuritaire une <u>faible</u> consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse.
    - 1 Vrai
    - 2 Faux
    - 3 NSP/PR
  - b) Plus une femme consomme de l'alcool pendant sa grossesse, plus il probable que c'est dangereux pour le bébé.
  - c) Plus une femme enceinte consomme de l'alcool, plus c'est dangereux pour le bébé.
  - d) On peut généralement considérer comme sécuritaire une consommation <u>modérée</u> d'alcool pendant la grossesse.
  - e) <u>Toute</u> consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse peut être dangereuse pour le bébé.
  - f) La consommation d'alcool <u>avant</u> la grossesse peut être dangereuse pour le bébé, même si une femme cesse de consommer de l'alcool <u>pendant</u> la grossesse.
  - g) Une <u>faible</u> consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse n'est jamais dangereuse pour le bébé.
- 4. Est-ce que les énoncés suivants sont vrais ou faux?
  - a) Les effets de la consommation d'alcool sur le développement du fœtus ne sont pas clairs.
    - 1 Vrai
    - 2 Faux
    - 3 NSP/PR
  - b) La consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse peut causer des handicaps à vie au bébé.
  - c) La plupart des effets de la consommation d'alcool sur le bébé disparaissent à mesure que l'enfant grandit.
- 5. En ce qui concerne les effets sur l'enfant à naître, est-ce que vous pensez qu'il serait très sécuritaire, assez sécuritaire, pas très sécuritaire ou pas du tout sécuritaire pour une femme enceinte de consommer chacune des quantités d'alcool suivantes?

#### LIRE EN ROTATION

a) Une boisson alcoolisée par jour pendant la grossesse?

			4 - Pas du tout sécuritaire 5 - NSP/PR
		b)	Trois ou quatre boissons alcoolisées chaque fin de semaine, pendant la grossesse?
		c)	Deux boissons alcoolisées à deux ou trois occasions pendant la grossesse?
		d)	Un total de une ou deux boissons alcoolisées pendant la grossesse?
LI	RE (	Q.6 et C	2.7 EN ROTATION
6.			que vous avez déjà entendu parler du syndrome d'alcoolisme fœtal ou ensemble es causés par l'alcoolisation foetale?
			1 - Oui <b>POSER (b)</b> 2 - Non 3 - NSP/PR
	b)	l'ense	que vous pouvez me dire qu'est-ce que le syndrome d'alcoolisme fœtale ou mble des troubles causés par l'alcoolisation fœtale? <b>SONDER POUR OBTENIR RÉPONSE COMPLÈTE</b> . Qu'est-ce qui se produit dans le syndrome xication fœtale à l'alcool ou dans ensemble des troubles causés par l'alcoolisation e?
7.	a)	Est-ce	que vous avez déjà entendu parler des malformations congénitales liées à l'alcool ?  1 - Oui POSER (b)
			2 - Non 3 - NSP/PR
	b)		que vous pouvez me dire quelles sont les malformations congénitales liées à ol ? <b>SONDER</b>
	Est	t-ce que	R À TOUS e vous souvenez d'avoir vu des informations sur les effets de la consommation ar le bébé pendant la grossesse?

1 - Très sécuritaire2 - Assez sécuritaire3 - Pas très sécuritaire

- 1 Oui
- 2 Non
- 3 NSP/PR
- 9. a) Est-ce que vous vous souvenez d'avoir vu ou entendu au cours des quelques mois derniers des <u>messages publicitaires</u> au sujet de la consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse, du syndrome d'alcoolisme fœtale, de l'ensemble des troubles causés par l'alcoolisation fœtale ou des malformations congénitales liées à l'alcool? Ce peut être à la télévision, sur des panneaux-réclames, sur des affiches, à la radio, dans les journaux ou dans des magazines.

1 - Oui **DEMANDER (b)**2 - Non **PASSER À Q.10**3 - NSP/PR **PASSER À Q.10** 

#### SI OUI, DEMANDER:

b) Veuillez me dire tout ce que vous vous souvenez de ce message publicitaire (ces messages publicitaires).

# 2 - NSP/PR

- c) Est-ce que vous vous souvenez du nom du commanditaire de cette publicité? **NE PAS LIRE. CODER TOUTES LES MENTIONS QUI S'APPLIQUENT.** 
  - 1 Le gouvernement fédéral/Santé Canada
  - 2 Le gouvernement de votre province
  - 3 Un autre gouvernement/les autorités municipales
  - 4 Un organisme pour la santé/un organisme non gouvernemental
  - 5 Un fabricant d'alcool/une compagnie de bière
  - 6 Une société des alcools provinciale
  - 7 Autre (**PRÉCISER**)
  - 8 NSP/PR
- d) Où avez-vous remarqué ce ou ces messages?

**NE PAS LIRE** En avez-vous remarqué ailleurs?

# CODER TOUTES LES MENTIONS QUI S'APPLIQUENT.

Première mention Autres mentions

- 01 Télévision
- 02 Radio
- 03 Journaux
- 04 Magazines
- 05 Restaurant/bar
- 06 Dépliant/brochure

- 07 Affiche
  08 Transport en commun
  09 Internet/annonce de la bannière du site web
  10 Médecin/Hôpital/clinique
  11 Magasin d'alcools/magasin de bières
  11 Autres (**PRÉCISER**)
- 12 NSP/PR

# **DEMANDER À TOUS**

- 10. Est-ce que vous approuvez fortement, approuvez plutôt, désapprouvez plutôt ou désapprouvez fortement chacun des énoncés suivants? **LIRE EN ROTATION**.
  - a) Exiger des étiquettes sur les produits de l'alcool avertissant des risques de la consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse.
    - 1 Approuve fortement
    - 2 Approuve plutôt
    - 3 Désapprouve plutôt
    - 4 Désapprouve fortement
    - 5 NSP/PR
  - b) Exiger des affiches dans les restaurants avertissant des risques de la consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse.
  - c) Exiger des affiches dans les bars et les clubs avertissant des risques de la consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse.
  - d) De la publicité commanditée par le gouvernement avertissant des risques de la consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse.
  - e) Exiger des messages dans la publicité sur l'alcool avertissant des risques de la consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse.
- 11. Quelle serait pour vous la meilleure source d'information sur le syndrome de l'alcoolisme foetal et sur les effets de la consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse? **NE PAS LIRE.** 
  - 01 Médecin/bureau du médecin
  - 02 Clinique/hôpital
  - 03 Cours prénataux
  - 04 Pharmacie
  - 05 Milieu de travail
  - 06 Amis/famille
  - 07 Livres/magazines
  - 08 Sources sur l'Internet
  - 09 Télévision/autre média
  - 10 Autres (**PRÉCISER**)
  - 11 NSP/PR

12. Le gouvernement du Canada envisage certaines initiatives pour informer les gens et les mettre au courant des effets de la consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse. Est-ce que chacune des façons suivantes serait très efficace, assez efficace ou pas très efficace pour vous rejoindre, sur ce sujet?

# LIRE EN ROTATION

- a) Un site web.
  - 1 Très efficace
  - 2 Assez efficace
  - 3 Pas très efficace
  - 4 NSP/PR
- b) Envoyer aux médecins et aux professionnels de la santé des documents d'information pour qu'ils informent leurs patients.
- c) Des affiches dans les salles d'attente et les cliniques.
- d) Des encarts et de la publicité dans les magazines ou les journaux.
- e) Des messages sur les autobus, dans le métro ou dans les abribus.
- f) Des dépliants, des brochures ou d'autres publications.
- g) Des dépliants ou des brochures dans les pharmacies.
- h) De la publicité à la télévision.
- i) De la publicité à la radio.

# FEMMES SEULEMENT - POUR LES AUTRES, PASSER À Q.18

- 13. a) Est-ce que vous avez déjà accouché?
  - 1 Oui **POSER (b)**
  - 2 Non
  - 3 NSP/PR
  - b) Est-ce que vous avez accouché au cours des cinq dernières années ?
    - 1 Oui
    - 2 Non
    - 3 NSP/PR
- 14. a) Est-ce que vous êtes actuellement enceinte ou est-ce que vous désirez l'être d'ici deux ans?

- 1 Oui, actuellement enceinte
- 2 Oui, pourrait devenir enceinte
- 3 Non **POSER (b)** 4 - NSP/PR **POSER (b)**
- b) Est-ce que vous pensez que vous pourriez devenir enceinte ou désirer l'être à un moment donné ?
  - 1 Oui
  - 2 Non
  - 3 NSP/PR
- 15. Si vous deveniez enceinte, est-ce que vous...

[SI ENCEINTE : Depuis que vous êtes enceinte, est-ce que vous avez...]

- 1 ne changeriez pas votre consommation d'alcool [changé votre consommation d'alcool]
- 2 réduiriez votre consommation d'alcool [réduit votre consommation d'alcool]
- 3 cesseriez de consommer de l'alcool [cessé de consommer de l'alcool]

#### NON SUGGÉRÉ

- 4 ne consomme pas d'alcool maintenant
- 5 NSP/PR
- 16. Est-ce que vous auriez plus tendance à boire de l'alcool, moins tendance à boire de l'alcool ou est-ce que ça ne ferait pas de différence pour votre consommation d'alcool dans chacune des situations suivantes?

#### LIRE EN ROTATION

- a) Si votre mari ou votre conjoint continuait à boire de l'alcool pendant votre grossesse?
  - 1 Plus tendance
  - 2 Moins tendance
  - 3 Pas de différence

#### NON SUGGÉRÉ

- 4 Ne boit pas d'alcool
- 5 NSP/PR
- b) Si votre mari ou vous conjoint vous encourageait à cesser ou à réduire votre consommation d'alcool pendant votre grossesse?
- c) Si votre mari ou votre conjoint vous offrait de l'alcool pendant votre grossesse?
- d) Si votre mari ou votre conjoint cessait de boire de l'alcool pendant votre grossesse?
- 17. Quels conseils, s'il y a lieu, est-ce que votre médecin vous a donnés sur la consommation d'alcool pendant la grossesse ? (QUESTION À RÉPONSE OUVERTE)
  - 1 Réponse

- 2 Le médecin ne m'a pas donné de conseils au sujet de l'alcool
- 3 NSP/PR

# HOMMES SEULEMENT. POUR LES AUTRES, PASSER À Q.21

18. a) Est-ce que vous avez des enfants?

- 1 Oui **POSER** (**b**)
- 2 Non
- 3 NSP/PR
- b) Est-ce que vous avez des enfants de 5 ans ou moins?
  - 1 Oui
  - 2 Non
  - 3 NSP/PR
- 19. a) Est-ce que vous avez actuellement une femme ou une conjointe qui est enceinte ou qui pourrait devenir enceinte d'ici deux ans?
  - 1 Oui
  - 2 Non **POSER (b)**
  - b) Est-ce que vous pensez que votre femme ou votre conjointe pourrait devenir enceinte à un moment donné?
    - 1 Oui
    - 2 Non
    - 3 NSP/PR
- 20. Si votre femme ou votre conjointe devenait enceinte (ou si elle est enceinte), est-ce qu'il serait très probable, plutôt probable, pas très probable ou pas du tout probable que vous fassiez chacune des choses suivantes?

# LIRE EN ROTATION

- a) L'encourager à cesser de consommer de l'alcool ou à réduire sa consommation d'alcool pendant sa grossesse
  - 1 Très probable
  - 2 Plutôt probable
  - 3 Pas très probable
  - 4 Pas du tout probable
  - 5 NSP/PR
- b) Cesser vous-même de boire de l'alcool pendant sa grossesse

# **DEMANDER À TOUS**

21. À votre avis, si vous pensez à une <u>femme moyenne</u>/si vous pensez encore à une <u>femme moyenne</u> LIRE EN ROTATION a to d

# NOTE À L'INTERVIEWEUR : UNE CONSOMMATION EST UN VERRE DE VIN, UN COOLER AU VIN, UNE CANETTE OU UNE BOUTEILLE DE BIÈRE, UN PETIT VERRE DE SPIRITUEUX OU UN COCKTAIL

a) Combien de boissons alcoolisées, au cours d'une soirée, considérez-vous comme étant une <u>consommation excessive d'alcool</u> ?

01 - 1 ou moins

02 - 2

03 - 3

04 - 4

05 - 5

06 - 6

07 - 7

08 - 8

09 - 9

10 - 10

11 - 11

12 - 12

13 - 13

14 - 14

15 – 15 ou plus

16 – Jamais entendu parler d'une cuite d'un soir (**RÉPONSE** 

DONNÉES SPONTANÉMENT)

17 - NSP/SO

- b) Combien de boissons alcoolisées, au cours d'une soirée, considérez-vous comme étant une <u>consommation légère d'alcool</u> ?
- c) Combien de boissons alcoolisées, au cours d'une soirée, considérez-vous comme étant une grosse consommation d'alcool?
- d) Combien de boissons alcoolisées, au cours d'une soirée, considérez-vous comme étant une <u>consommation modérée d'alcool</u>?

# SECTION DÉMOGRAPHIQUE

# **DEMANDER À TOUS**

22. Finalement, quelques questions à des fins statistiques. Soyez assuré que toutes vos réponses demeureront entièrement anonymes et strictement confidentielles. En quelle année êtes-vous né?

1 - PRÉCISER	

2 - NSP/PR

23. Quel est le niveau de scolarité le plus élevé que vous avez atteint?

# NE PAS LIRE - ENCERCLER UNE RÉPONSE SEULEMENT

- 01 Une partie du cours primaire
- 02 Le cours primaire au complet
- 03 Une partie du cours secondaire
- 04 Le cours secondaire au complet
- 05 Une partie du cours secondaire commercial, technique ou professionnel, du cours collégial, ou du cégep
- 06 Un diplôme ou un certificat d'un collège, ou d'un cégep ou un diplôme commercial, technique ou professionnel
- 07 Une partie du premier cycle universitaire
- 08 Un baccalauréat (bacc) (par exemple, un B.A., B.Sc., B.Ed.)
- 09 Études supérieures ou dans une profession libérale (p. ex. maîtrise, doctorat, maîtrise en sciences, maîtrise en sciences de l'éducation, doctorat en médecine, baccalauréat en droit)
- 10 Aucune instruction

# **NON SUGGÉRÉ**

- 11 NSP/Refus
- 24. Laquelle des catégories suivantes décrit le mieux votre situation actuelle? Est-ce que :
  - 1 Vous avez un emploi à temps plein
  - 2 Vous avez un emploi à temps partiel
  - 3 Vous êtes sans emploi
  - 4 Vous êtes au foyer
  - 5 Vous êtes à la retraite
  - 6 Vous êtes aux études
  - 7 Autre
  - 8 NSP/Refus
- 25. En plus d'être Canadien-ne, à quel groupe ethnique ou culturel est-ce que vous ou vos ancêtres appartenez?

# NE PAS LIRE. CODER DEUX RÉPONSES AU MAXIMUM.

- 01 Britannique (anglais, gallois, écossais, irlandais)
- 02 Français
- 03 Autre origine européenne (allemand, ukrainien, polonais, néerlandais, italien, portugais, grec, espagnol, russe, etc.)
- 04 Juif
- 05 Chinois
- 06 Asie du Sud (p. ex. indien d'Asie, pakistanais, punjab, sri lankais)
- 07 Noir (p. ex. africain, haïtien, jamaïcain, somalien, afro-américain)
- 08 Autochtone (Premières nations, amérindien, métis, inuit)
- 09 Asie du Sud-Est (cambodgien, indonésien, laotien, vietnamien, philippin)
- 10 Amérique du Sud (chilien, brésilien, argentin, etc.)
- 11 Hispanique (mexicain, Amérique centrale, cubain, etc.)

	12 – Asie orientale 13 - Autre ( <b>PRÉCISER</b> ) 14 - NSP/PR
26. Est-ce que vous	êtes né au Canada ou dans un autre pays?
	1 - Canada 2 - Un autre pays 3 - NSP/PR
27. Est-ce que vous	êtes autochtone, métis, membre des Premières nations ou Inuit?
	1 - Oui 2 - Non 3 - NSP/PR
28. a) Êtes-vous:	
LIRE	1 - Marié(e) ou conjoint de fait POSER (b) 2 - Veuf(ve) 3 - Séparé(e) 4 - Divorcé(e)? 5 - Célibataire 6 - NSP/PR/REFUS
· •	pien de temps êtes-vous marié ou vivez-vous avec votre conjoint?  AS LIRE
	1 - Moins de 1 an 2 - De 1 an à moins de 2 ans 3 - De 2 ans à moins de 3 ans 4 - De 3 ans à moins de 4 ans 5 - De 4 ans à moins de 5 ans 6 - De 5 ans à moins de 10 ans 7 - De 10 ans à moins de 15 ans 8 - 15 ans et plus 9 - NSP/PR
-	égories suivantes décrit le revenu total de tous les membres de votre foyer, y ême, avant impôt en 2005, avant les retenues et les déductions?
	01 - Moins de 10 000 \$ 02 - De 10 001 \$ à 20 000 \$ 03 - De 20 001 \$ à 30 000 \$ 04 - De 30 001 \$ à 40 000 \$ 05 - De 40 001 \$ à 50 000 \$

06 - De 50 001 \$ à 60 000 \$ 07 - De 60 001 \$ à 70 000 \$

- 08 De 70 001 \$ à 80 000 \$
- 09 De 80 001 \$ à 90 000 \$
- 10 De 90 001 \$ à 100 000 \$
- 11 100 000 \$ et plus
- 12 NSP/PR /Refus
- 30. Si vous pensez au cours du mois dernier, combien de boissons alcoolisées avez-vous consommées pendant une semaine moyenne ? (**NOTE À L'INTERVIEWEUR**: une consommation est un verre de vin, un cooler au vin, une cannette ou une bouteille de bière, une consommation de boisson forte, ou un cocktail)?

#### **NE PAS LIRE**

- 1 Aucune consommation pendant une semaine moyenne
- 2 Moins de 1 consommation pendant une semaine moyenne
- 3 De 1 à 3 consommations par semaine
- 4 De 4 à 6 consommations par semaine
- 5 De 7 à 10 consommations par semaine
- 6 De 11 à 14 consommations par semaine
- 7 De 15 à 17 consommations par semaine
- 8 18 consommations ou plus par semaine
- 9 **NE PAS LIRE** Je ne bois jamais d'alcool
- 10 NSP/PR
- 31. Pour terminer, si vous pensez aux <u>six</u> derniers mois, à combien d'occasions ou combien de fois avez-vous consommé [Femmes : 4 boissons ou plus en 4 heures, Hommes: 5 boissons ou plus en 4 heures] ?

# **NE PAS LIRE**

- 1 Jamais
- 2 Une fois
- 3 Deux fois
- 4 Trois fois
- 5 Quatre fois ou plus
- 6 NSP/PR

Si le répondant demande plus d'informations sur le sujet, lire :

Si vous voulez recevoir des informations sur l'alcool et la grossesse, veuillez communiquer avec le Centre canadien de lutte contre l'alcoolisme et les toxicomanies au 1-800-559-4514.